KAl YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
BFARZERBR A H

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(REREFMRIZ AR AR)
(Stock Code J&{H 5% 1215)

2021

ANNUAL REPORT
F 3




CONTENTS B %

Corporate Information

CEO’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Directors’ Profile

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Risk Management and Internal Control Report
Directors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Five Year Financial Summary

NAER
THEHSRES
B E RN Lo

BEEEN

TEEARSE

B LR REARE
ARERRNBELRE

EEgWmEE
BYZEEMRES
mEBmK
et ERER
iR e IR &R
FEEREPR
FEREeRER

B T R M 5
TFEUBHRE

2-3
4-5
6-12
13-14
15-36
37-54
55-59
60-72
73-79
80

81
82-83
84
85-86
87-187
188




CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Xue Jian (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Tam Sun Wing (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Tam Sun Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Mr. He Yi

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Ng Ge Bun (Chairman)

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Mr. He Yi

Mr. Tam Sun Wing

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

STOCK CODE
1215

WEBSITE

www.kaiyuanholdings.com

2 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

=g

BITES

BERR SR (TTB AR )
BAKERE

BYFHTES
BITRELE
REWRE
BSEE

BERERY
RS (ZE)
KEW L
BREE

e ES SR
RS ()
BKESEE
BREE

REMW L

REZES
REWEE(ER)
BAKERE
BREE
AR

DNEWE
BKERE

B A3 18R

1215

# 4t

www.kaiyuanholdings.com



PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor

North Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton, HM12

Bermuda

SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Victoria Place

5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG
28th Floor, Chinachem Century Tower

178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27th Floor, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road, Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

SOLICITORS

K&L Gates

44th Floor, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hong Kong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NE]ER

FERDBFETE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor

North Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton, HM12

Bermuda

BRHBEERLE
BEEERARAR
BB
SRRNBHR183%
AR LS41E

MM EE
Victoria Place
5th Floor

31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10
Bermuda

ERTENRSR
&5

BT AT 17855
4 52818

7% 4

LK G RN BISAT
MEGETRD

a5
BRI 2 E9795%
RKirsh— 2718

e :01]

SE- Y HIES 3
BB
ERRBEFI155
EHES
UN-CYNLY:

ERERMRIT
BB LGELHRITARAA

BRERARAT | 2021 FEHR 3



CEO'S STATEMENT
THREHRES

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Kai
Yuan Holdings Limited (the "Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group” or “Kai Yuan”), | now present the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$164.4 million for the
Year, as compared to the loss of approximately HK$332.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Preceding Year"). The decrease in
loss for the Year was mainly attributable to the increase in the revenue
contributed by the Paris Marriott Hotel Champs-Elysées (the “Paris
Marriott Hotel”) from the hotel operation segment, and the receipt of
government grants due to the coronavirus pandemic. As the result of
the relaxation of the lockdown measure, the Paris Marriott Hotel was
reopened on 15 June 2021. As a result of the improved performance of
the Paris Marriott Hotel, no impairment loss was recorded during the Year
(2020: approximately HK$333.6 million). Further details on the operation
of the hotel will be addressed in the section headed Management
Discussion and Analysis.

The Group acquired the 37.125% equity interests in 1t R SLIHE R AR
A 7] (Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering Science & Technology Co.,
Ltd*) (the “Associate”). A major subsidiary ("Associate Subsidiary”) of the
Associate was impacted by then the socio-economic environment and
the coronavirus pandemic in the People’s Republic of China, rendered
the Associate Subsidiary’s development progress as well as business
and financial performance was less than satisfactory; the Associate
Subsidiary had also been involved in certain cases of litigation regarding
outstanding balance on construction of its production plant (“Litigation
Case”). As at the date of this report, such Litigation Case has not been
resolved. Accordingly, the Group recorded in total of approximately
HK$137.5 million of provision covering the provision for impairment on
the investment, the provision for the expected credit loss, and the share
of the loss in relation to the Associate. Further details on the provision of
impairment, the provision of the expected credit loss and the share of loss
of the Associate will be addressed in the section headed Management
Discussion and Analysis.

The Group subscribed the three-year unsecured, interest bearing
convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) in the Preceding Year. Due to the
adjustment of fair value of the Convertible Bonds, the Group recorded
the fair value loss of approximately HK$9.6 million during the Year.
Notwithstanding the record of the fair value loss, the Convertible Bonds
continued to contribute the interest income to the Group.

*  For identification purposes only
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Looking forward, the Group anticipates business and investment outlook
of 2022 will be full of uncertainty, due to the continued existence of the
coronavirus pandemic in 2022, the emergence of global tension and
instability caused by the conflicts at different nations, and uncertain
economic prospects. For the hotel operation segment, notwithstanding
the relaxation of the lockdown measure in France, the number of
coronavirus infection case remains high as of the day of this report. In
addition, new coronavirus variants had emerge in France containing
elements of mixture of difference precedent virus strains. Now it is unclear
when the adverse effects brought by the coronavirus pandemic will
end, the Group will continue to monitor the coronavirus development
in France. Finally, the Paris Marriott Hotel is undergoing the Phase 1
renovation of rooms facing the Avenue des Champs-Elysees and atrium
in order to enhance the competitiveness and guest experience. For
the money lending segment, the price of commercial and residential
properties in Hong Kong had shown a downtrend momentum during the
Year, the decline in property prices might continue in 2022. The Group
will exercise extreme caution and adopt risk aversive measures when
conducting existing business while being attentive to new investment
opportunities.

In conclusion and on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers,

employees, suppliers and business partners for their continuous support
and encouragement.

On behalf of the Board

Xue Jian
Executive director and Chief Executive Officer

28 March 2022

*  Foridentification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERN R D

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$93.9 million, representing a increase of
approximately 148.7% from the approximately HK$37.8 million for the
Preceding Year. The significant increase in revenue during the Year was
mainly attributable to the increase in the revenue contributed by the
Paris Marriott Hotel Champs-Elysées (“Paris Marriott Hotel”) of the hotel
operation segment, subsequent to the reopening of the hotel since 15
June 2021, as compare to the temporary closure of the hotel for more
than nine months during the Preceding Year. In addition, the Paris
Marriott Hotel was granted with a one-off government grants as a result
of the coronavirus pandemic of approximately HK$70.5 million during
the Year. As the result of the improved financial performance of the Paris
Marriott Hotel during the Year, there was no impairment loss on the Pairs
Marriott Hotel properties was recorded.

The Group recorded a share of loss of an associate of approximately
HK$25.5 million during the Year, representing an increase of
approximately 285.6% from the approximately HK$6.6 million for the
Preceding Year. The increase in the share of loss of an associate was due
to the financial performance of the associate was below expectation.

With regards to the three-year Convertible Bonds subscribed by the
Group recorded under Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, we recorded the fair value loss of approximately HK$9.6 million for
the Year, as opposed to fair value gain of approximately HK$8.5 million
for the Preceding Year. The record of the fair value loss was due to the
adjustment of fair value of the Convertible Bonds.

With reference to the announcements made by the Company dated 29
November 2021, the financial performance of the Associate together
with its subsidies (“Associate Subsidiary”) was below original target due
to (i) the coronavirus pandemic as well as the then socio-economic
environment in the People’s Republic of China; (ii) due to competitors’
production technology breakthrough regarding hydroxylamine
hydrochloride (B84 ¥Sh%), re-adjustments would need to be made to
the original product mix of medical intermediary products offered by
the Associate Subsidiary; and (iii) the Associate Subsidiary has been
involved in certain cases of litigation regarding outstanding balance
on construction of its production plant. Therefore, the provision for
impairment of approximately HK$8.3 million on the investment in the
Associate; and the provision for impairment of approximately HK$103.6
million on the loan granted to the Associate and interest receivable were
recorded.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded the loss for the Year of approximately HKS164.4
million, representing a decrease of approximately 50.6% from the loss of
approximately HK$332.9 million for the Preceding Year. The decrease in
the loss for the Year is mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in gross loss;
and (ii) absence of impairment loss on the Paris Marriott Hotel properties,
but offset by (iii) the provision for impairment of approximately HK$8.3
million on the investment in the Associate; (iv) the provision for
impairment of approximately HK$103.6 million on the loan granted to
the Associate; (v) the share of loss of approximately HK$25.5 million
from the Associate for the year ended 31 December 2021; and (vi) the
record of the fair value loss of approximately HK$9.6 million from the
Convertible Bonds. The loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the Year was approximately HK$164.4 million, as compared to the loss
of approximately HK$332.9 million for the Preceding Year. The basic and
diluted loss per share for the Year was HK1.29 cents, as compared to the
basic and diluted loss per share of HK2.6 cents for the Preceding Year.

The total non-current assets of the Group as at 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$2,698.5 million, representing the
decrease of approximately 9.9% from approximately HK$2,996.5 million
as at 31 December 2020. The decrease in the total non-current assets of
the Group during the Year was mainly due to the record of the provision
for impairment on the investment in the Associate, the provision for
impairment on the loan and interest receivable from the Associate, the
fair value loss on the Convertible Bonds, and the depreciation of Euro
against Hong Kong Dollar. The total current assets of the Group as at
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$1,016.7 million,
representing the decrease of approximately 5.0% from approximately
HK$1,070.7 million as at 31 December 2020.

The total current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$64.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 96.2% from approximately HK$1,689.5 million (restated)
as at 31 December 2020. The decrease in the total current liabilities of
the Group during the Year was mainly due to the re-classification of
the interest-bearing bank borrowings of EUR175.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,516.8 million) ("EURO Bank Loan”) from current
liabilities to non-current liabilities. The total non-current liabilities
of the Group as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$1,667.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 905.7%
from approximately HK$165.8 million (restated) as at 31 December 2020.
The increase in the non-current liabilities was mainly due to the re-
classification of the EURO Bank Loan discussed above.

Segmental review of the Group’s operations during the Year is as follows:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERN R D

Hotel Operation

The Group recorded the revenue of approximately HK$93.9 million from
the hotel operation segment, representing the increase of approximately
154.7%, from the approximately HK$36.9 million for the Preceding Year.
The increase in revenue of the hotel operation segment for the Year was
mainly attributable to the increase in revenue contributed by the Paris
Marriott Hotel. The Paris Marriott Hotel was reopened on 15 June 2021
after approximately 15 months of temporary closure, as opposed to the
Paris Marriott Hotel was temporarily closed for more than nine months
in the Preceding Year. As soon as the French government announced its
four stages lockdown exit plans, the hotel had been actively mobilized
to welcome guests. As the result of the prime location occupied, the
demand for hotel rooms at the Paris Marriott Hotel had been strong
since the reopening. The Group recorded the loss of approximately
HK$29.1 million in this segment for the Year, as compared to the loss of
approximately HK$445.1 million for the Preceding Year. The decrease
in the loss of this segment during the Year was mainly attributable to
the significant increase in the revenue contributed by the Paris Marriott
Hotel and the absence of impairment of property, plant and equipment
recorded during the Year (31 December 2020: approximately HK$333.6
million). During the Year, the Paris Marriott Hotel received a one-off
government grant of approximately HK$70.5 million as the result of the
coronavirus pandemic. During the Year, the Paris Marriott Hotel had
actively implemented measures to restraint operational costs during the
temporary closure period, including the execution of the staff redundancy
plan.

Despite being positioned right at the affluent Avenue des Champs-
Elysees, the Hotel has been facing more intense competition from
existing hotels as well as new hotels to be opened nearby. The last
renovation of the Hotel was conducted over 10 years ago. In order to
maintain the competitiveness and room rates, the Hotel has a strong need
to upgrade its environment to tailor for the demand and expectation
of its guests. Therefore, the Group had committed to a renovation plan
of approximately HK$113.4 million (approximately EUR13.0 million) for
refurbishing certain hotel rooms and corridors of the Paris Marriott Hotel
facing the Avenue des Champs-Elysees and atrium (“Phase | Renovation”),
the Phase | Renovation was commenced in January 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Below is a comparison of the operational performance of the Paris
Marriott Hotel during the Year against the Preceding Year:

BEEENWR D

T tLEParis Marriott Hotel RANE & & £ FE
ZEBRIA

2021 from
15 June up to 2020 up to
31 December 17 March
—E-— —E-FF
BRA+EBEZE BE
+=A=+—-8H =A++HA
Occupancy NES: 66.2% 61.7%
Average Room Rate FHEEE €351 & €343 2R
RevPAR* FI9 K B W as €232 #E €212

* Revenue per available room

Money Lending

The Group did not record any revenue from this segment during the
Year (the Preceding Year: approximately HK$0.9 million). The decrease in
revenue generated from this segment was mainly due to the Group did
not grant any loan to borrower during the Year. The Group recorded a
loss of approximately HK$0.6 million from this segment for the Year, as
compared to the loss of approximately HK$S0.1 million for the Preceding
Year. There was no mortgage loan receivable as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: nil).

Equity Investment and Other Investment

Interests in an Associate

As disclosed in the section headed Business Review above, the Group
provided for impairment on the investment in the Associate and the
provision for impairment of the loan and interest receivable to the
Associate, based on the actual financial performance, the on-going
litigation cases, the general economic condition, the nature of assets
held by the Group and the credit risk of the Associate and its subsidies.
The provisions for impairment are general provisions by applying the
expected loss rate to the investment in the Associate, the loan to the
Associate and interest receivables.

Convertible Bonds

During the year, the Group recorded the interest from the Convertible
Bonds of approximately HK$7.8 million (31 December 2020:
approximately HK$1.0 million). During the Year, the Group recorded the
fair value loss of approximately HK$9.6 million from the Convertible Bonds
(31 December 2020: fair value gain of approximately HK$8.5 million), it
was due to the adjustment of fair value of the Convertible Bonds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERN R D

PROSPECTS

Hotel Operation

The effect of the coronavirus pandemic continues into 2022. As of the
date of this report, France lifted most coronavirus pandemic restrictions,
allowing mega events, public places, restaurants, and cinemas to carry
on business as usual. For vaccinated international travellers, the proof of
a complete vaccination schedule becomes sufficient to arrive in France,
regardless of the country of origin. This policy facilitates vaccinated
travellers to organize trips to France and supports the gradual recovery
of the tourism market. The Paris Marriott Hotel has witnessed a strong
demand of its hotel rooms since the reopening on 15 June 2021. As of
the date of the report, this trend of strong demand continues despite the
partial closure of the hotel for renovation. As mentioned in the segmental
discussion above, the Paris Marriott Hotel is undergoing the Phase 1
Renovation, hotel rooms, corridors and certain public areas will be closed
for renovation. The rest of the hotel not affected by the renovation will
continue to serve our hotel guests. During the pandemic period, the Paris
Marriott Hotel has implemented measures to bring down its headcount
to restraint the operational costs. Currently, the labour market in France
in general is undergoing tremendous pressure, many employees had not
returned to the original positions after the lockdown or had changed
professionals, creating difficulty for the hotel to rehire the needed
headcount, should the demand of hotel rooms continues.

Money Lending

The Board considers Hong Kong’s mortgage loan market will remain
challenging, being heavily competitive with uncertain prospects. The
Board would exercise the utmost caution when conducting mortgage
loan business in Hong Kong.

Equity Investment and Other Investment

Interests in an Associate

As at the date of the report, the Associate has not resolved the Litigation
Case with the contractors and suppliers. The Board shall continue closely
monitoring its investment in the Associate. Further announcement will
be published by the Company as and when appropriate if there are any
significant changes to the Associate.

Convertible Bonds

The interest income received from the Convertible Bonds offered
a premium over the interest rates of fixed deposit. The fair value
loss recorded by the Group are non-cash accounting treatments in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards that has
no effect on the Group's operating cash flow. The Directors remain the
view that the subscription of the Convertible Bonds would enhance the
income of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LOOKING AHEAD

The Board will concurrently review the Group’s portfolio to restructure
and enhance the quality of assets held. The Board will also continue to
explore investment opportunities from new business segments with a
view to enhancing and improving returns to the Company's stakeholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, total assets and net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$3,715.2 million and HK$1,983.7 million respectively
(31 December 2020: approximately HK$4,067.2 million and HK$2,211.8
million, respectively). The cash and bank balance of the Group as at
31 December 2021 were approximately HK$871.7 million, and were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Euro, United States dollar and
Renminbi (31 December 2020: approximately HK$892.9 million). The total
current assets of the Group as at 31 December 2021 were approximately
HKS$1,016.7 million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$1,070.7
million). As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$952.5 million (31 December 2020: net current liabilities
of approximately HK$618.9 million (restated)). The Group adopted a
conservative treasury approach and had tight control over its cash
management. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding bank
loans and other borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,516.8
million' (31 December 2020: approximately HK$1,625.8 million), none
of which (31 December 2020: Nil) were due within one year. As at 31
December 2021, the Group's gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets)
was approximately 40.8% (31 December 2020: approximately 40.0%).
The Group constantly monitors its cash flow position, maturity profile of
borrowings, availability of banking facilities, gearing ratio and interest rate
exposure.

(M Approximately HK$1,516.8 million (equivalent to €175,000,000) at
the interest rate of 3 months EURIBOR plus 2.2% per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERN R D

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
During the Year, the Group had no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group had operations in France, Luxembourg, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong where transactions and cash flow
were denominated in local currencies, including Euro, Renminbi, United
States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. As a result, the Group was exposed
to foreign currency exposure with respect to Euro and Renminbi, which
mainly occurred from conducting daily operations and financing activities
through local offices where local currencies were different from the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had not entered
into any forward contracts to hedge the foreign exchange exposure. The
Group managed its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review
and monitoring of foreign exchange exposure. The Group would consider
employing foreign exchange hedging arrangements when appropriate
and necessary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, cash deposits amounting to approximately
HK$39.3 million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$42.5 million) and
a building of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,432.3 million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$2,647.6 million)
were pledged to secure bank loan granted to the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

The Group had 7 employees as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: 7). The total employee remuneration during the Year was
approximately HK$7.8 million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$7.3
million). Remuneration policies were reviewed regularly to ensure that
compensation and benefits packages were in line with the market level. In
addition to basic remuneration, the Group also provided other employee
benefits including bonuses, mandatory provident fund scheme, medical
insurance scheme and participation to the share option scheme.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xue Jian

Mr. Xue Jian, aged 56, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 7
January 2009. Mr. Xue was re-designated as an executive Director on 6
January 2011, and appointed as chief executive officer on 1 June 2016. Mr.
Xue also serves as director to a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Xue received his master’s degree in business administration from
Zhongnan University of Finance, Economics, Politics and Law. Mr. Xue
has over two decades of experience in the steelmaking industry and in
the commercial sector in the PRC. He was the legal representative of
Rizhao Steel Co., Limited*, and is a director of Rizhao Steel Holding Group
Co., Limited*. The Rizhao Steel group of companies is one of the largest
private steel makers in the PRC. Mr. Xue has also been appointed as the
supervisor of Jinghua Rigang Holding Group Co., Limited*.

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director on 18 May 2011. He has also been appointed as members of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
as well as chief financial officer, existing process agent and company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Law also serves as director, company
secretary and legal representative to a number of Group companies. Mr.
Law has extensive experience in financial management and professional
accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Law was the chief financial
officer of Diamondlite Group, one of the leading jewelry manufacturers
in the PRC. Having started his career as a professional accountant in an
international accountancy firm, Mr. Law has undertaken key financial
management positions in companies engaged in a variety of industries.
Mr. Law is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Law is also appointed as an
independent non-executive director of KML Technology Group Limited,
the issued shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (Stock
Code: 8065).

* For identification purpose only
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EEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Tam Sun Wing, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 14 December 2001. He has also been appointed as
chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration committee, and
the member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Tam is a
professional accountant with more than 30 years of extensive audit and
business advisory experience. Mr. Tam is practicing as a director of FTW &
Partners CPA Limited. Mr. Tam is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tam holds a Master Degree
of Science in Corporate Governance and Directorship from the Hong
Kong Baptist University.

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. Ng Ge Bun, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 September 2004. He has also been appointed as
member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ng holds the
degree in bachelor of science and degree in bachelor in laws. He obtained
a postgraduate certificate in laws from The University of Hong Kong. He
is a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong and currently serves as
a consultant of H.Y. Leung & Co. LLP Solicitors. Mr. Ng is also appointed
as an independent non-executive director of EverChina Int'l Holdings
Company Limited, the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 202).

Mr. He Yi

Mr. He Yi, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 18 May 2011. He has been appointed as member of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. He is the chief executive officer of
Shanghai YAOXIN Asset Investment and Management Limited. Prior
to this, he was the general manager of Barclays Bank Shanghai Branch
and has extensive experience in the financial industry. Mr. He started
his career with the Credit Agricole Indosuez in Shanghai and was the
head of treasury department and financial institutions department of
First Sino Bank, the head of global markets China and deputy general
manager of the Shanghai branch of Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited. Mr. He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a certified economist accredited by The Ministry
of Personnel of China. Mr. He also holds a postgraduate master degree
of economics from Fudan University, Shanghai, China. Mr. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Sunshine Oilsands Limited, the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
2012).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance. Continuous efforts
are made to review and enhance the Group's internal control policy and
procedures in light of local and international developments to instill best
practices.

The Board has set up procedures on corporate governance that comply
with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) on corporate governance
practices based on the principles and code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to
Listing Rules.

The Company had complied with the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 with the following
deviations:

C.2.1 The Company does not have a Chairman. No replacement
appointment of the Chairman of the Board was made during
the Year. The role and responsibilities of the Chairman on
governance matters of the Company were shared between the
executive Directors during the Year. The Company will publish
an announcement once an appointment has been made in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

F.2.2 The Company does not have a Chairman, an executive
Director, Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, was elected to chair the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2021 in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

The Board will keep these matters under review.

Following sustained development and growth of the Company, we will
continue to monitor and revise the Company’s corporate governance
policies in order to ensure that such policies meet the general rules and
standards required by the shareholders of the Company.

No appointment of the Chairman of the Board was made during the
Period. The role and responsibilities of the Chairman on governance
matters of the Company were shared between the executive Directors
during the Year. The Company will publish an announcement once an
appointment has been made in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREARES

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
The Company, having made specific enquiry, has confirmed with the
Directors that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.

THE BOARD AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

The Board is responsible for directing the strategic objectives of the
Group and overseeing the management of the business. The Directors are
responsible for leadership and control of the Group. The overall corporate
governance structure of the Company is depicted in the following chart:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD

(R)

(B)

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, serving the important
function of guiding the management.

The Board members during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xue Jian (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

No Chairman was appointed during the Year. There are no
relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among the Directors. All Directors
are not appointed for a specific term. Although all Directors
are not appointed for a specific term, all Directors, except the
Chairman (if any), are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company pursuant
to the Bye-laws.

ROLE AND FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic business
development, reviewing and monitoring the business
performance of the Group, as well as preparing and approving
financial statements. The Directors, collectively and individually,
are aware of their responsibilities to shareholders, for the manner
in which the affairs of the Company are managed and operated.
In the appropriate circumstances and as and when necessary,
directors will consent to the seeking of independent professional
advice at the Group's expense, ensuring that board procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions
of the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where management should report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board will review those
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARES

The Board has the full support from the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities. Appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries
arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged
by the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board had held
meetings and discussed following issues:

1 reviewed the internal control system and risk management
of the Group;

2 discussed the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the interim results of the
Group for the period ended 30 June 2021 respectively;

3 considered the recommendation of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and the book close
period, if any;

4 proposed re-election of the Directors;

5 proposed the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the

auditors of the Company, and discussed the auditors
remuneration for the annual audit;

6 reviewed the effects on the changes of the accounting
standards and principles;

7 proposed the general mandates to issue and repurchase
shares of the Company;

8 reviewed the terms of the loan to an associate;
9 considered the reopening of the Paris Marriott Hotel;
10 consider and approved the redundancy plan of the Paris

Marriott Hotel;

11 considered and approved the renovation plan of the Paris
Marriott Hotel; and

12 considered and approved to engage ISG Europe as the
main contractor of the Paris Marriott Hotel renovation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PO -T2\ HF=
JJ:% == $E!( ==
(C)  MEETING RECORDS (€ SERE
There were in total 9 board meetings and general meeting held REZE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—81t
for the year ended 31 December 2021. FE ERHBITITIREFEEZER
RRE -
The following set out the attendance record of Board meetings NTHINFRANBITZEETETTRR
and general meeting held during the Year: EREAKe 7 HEHE

Attendance for board meeting
for the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_F_—-%+t-A=t+—AH

LFECEEEERHER
Board members Board Meetings General Meeting
EZERE Exged RRXE
Mr. Xue Jian 7/8 0/1
B A
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen 7/8 /1
Mr. Tam Sun Wing 8/8 0/1
BT E
Mr. Ng Ge Bun 8/8 11
REWSEE
Mr. He Yi 8/8 0/1
BRELE
One general meeting was held for the ended 31 December 2021. REBEE-_ZT-—F+=ZA=+—H81
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(D)

(E)

XERAREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board had at
all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents
of such confirmation, the Company considers that the three
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate
governance policy and performing the corporate governance
duties including the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code).
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(F) DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
The Directors are committed to participate in continuous
professional development. The Directors are regularly briefed
on amendments and updates on the relevant laws, rules and
regulations.

The company secretary of the Company had also provided course
materials concerning professional training relating to the roles,
functions and duties of a Director to all Directors namely, Mr. Xue
Jian, Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, Mr. Tam Sun Wing, Mr. Ng Ge Bun
and Mr. He Yi to develop and refresh their professional knowledge
and skills. According to the information provided by the Directors,
all of the Directors have read the course materials provided by the
company secretary of the Company for the past year.

(G) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group, and to report on material
uncertainties, if any, relating to events or conditions that may cost
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue preparing
the accounts on a going concern basis. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or condition
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to
continue preparing the financial statements on the assumption
that the Group will continue as going concern.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The division of the responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer is clearly established. The Chairman provides leadership
for the Board and the Chief Executive Officer has overall chief executive
responsibility for the Group's business development and day-to-day
management generally.

No appointment of the Chairman of the Board was made during the Year.
The role and responsibilities of the Chairman on governance matters of
the Company were shared by the executive Directors during the Year. The
Company will publish an announcement once an appointment has been
made in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Group adopted a board diversity policy. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance. The Board also sees diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. In forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will
also take into account of factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidate will bring to the Board

The Board considered that independent non-executive Directors can
enhance the effectiveness and decision-making of the Board by providing
independent view, objective judgement and constructive challenge to
the Board and management of the Group.

Having reviewed the Board composition, the Board recognises the
importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board level and shall
continue to take initiatives to identify female candidate(s) to enhance
the gender diversity among the Board members. We will appoint, subject
to the above, at least one female representation in our Board before 31
December 2024.

Our diversity philosophy including the gender diversity was generally
followed in the workforce throughout the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021. As of the date of this report, 100% of Directors and
approximately 86% of our total workforce were male. We will continue
with our endeavor to increase female representation in our Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has also established the following committees with defined
terms of reference:

Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee
Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its term of

reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms of reference as well

as the structure and membership of each committee will be reviewed

from time to time.

(R)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 14 December 2001.
It currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors.

Composition of Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2021 was as follows:

Mr. Tam Sun Wing (Chairman)
Mr. He Yi
Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Role and function
The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for:

(a) making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal;

(b) discussing with the auditors the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commences;
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(c) reviewing the Company’s annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
report before submission to the Board, focusing
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(if) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.

(d) discussing the risk management and internal control
systems with the management to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have an effective
system. This discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions.
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Meeting Record

The Audit Committee met three times during the Year to discuss
and approve the interim and annual results, and to review the
internal control procedures of the Group.

The attendance record of Audit Committee meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was as follows:

Committee member

TEERBES

BT
ERZBEENFAERTZREH
Nafim Rt/ER R 2 FEE IR
AR E 2 NERESIRRFF o

EREEEeNEBE_TE-_—%+_A
=+ BLEFEMRTEHILRERL
SRU0R ¢

Attendance at meetings held for
the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-_—F+-A=+—-BHLFE

EEERE FrBfTadchiER
Mr. Tam Sun Wing 3/3
BRI

Mr. He Yi 3/3
BOkAE

Mr. Ng Ge Bun 3/3
REW L

During the meetings, the Audit Committee discussed the
following matters:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Financial Reporting

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors to
discuss the interim and annual financial statements and
system of internal control of the Group. The auditors
and the chief financial officer were also in attendance to
answer questions on the financial results.

Where there were questions on the financial statements
and system of control of the Group reviewed by the Audit
Committee, the management of the Company would
provide breakdown, analysis and supporting documents
to the Audit Committee members in order to ensure that
the Audit Committee members were fully satisfied and
make proper recommendation to the Board.

External Auditors

The appointment of the external auditors and the
audit fee were considered by the Audit Committee
and recommendations were made to the Board on the
selection of external auditors of the Company. The Audit
Committee had also discussed on auditor’s independence,
objectivity and effectiveness of audit process.

Internal Control
Review of the sufficiency and efficiency of risk
management and the internal control system.
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(B) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (B) ¥ HMZEES
The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 March FMEEeR _EERF=A_-_1+—

2005. It currently consists of one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors.

B -

Ik

BRfR—ZRTEER =4
BITEFHK -

Composition of the Remuneration Committee for the year ended REBE-ZT-—F+=-A=+—HI1
1 December 2021 was as follows: FE FWNEZEEIKEWT :

Mr. Tam Sun Wing (Chairman) mITREE(FE)

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen EAELAE

Mr. Ng Ge Bun REWEAE

Mr. He Yi BkAE

Role and function A KB

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for: HHEESETFTERS ¢

1. reviewing any significant changes in human resources 1. EHRERBENERSTEY
policies and structure made in line with the then ANEBERBERERBEL 2E
prevailing trend and business requirements; AERES) :

2. making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s 2. RARFREERRREEAER
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and ZERBHEMER REE AR
senior management and on the establishment of a formal MBRIERMEBERAE ZEF
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such HETEBEFHEE  mESEe
remuneration; RN

3. determining the specific remuneration packages of all 3. EEAMBEITESLaRER
executive Directors and senior management, including BEEGZMNEE BIEEY
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation flz= ERE2REREES
payments, including any compensation payable for loss R EREEEELRK
or termination of their office or appointment, and make JJ:E%H%Y%EE% FmAaSZ 2
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration B8 WRLIEMITE S 2 %
packages of non-executive Directors; 58 ﬁﬁ%Af’Eﬁ%

4. considering factors such as salaries paid by comparable 4. EERBEARIAZEHM - &
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the EEAMHEBEEBES £
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group BN H A B 2 BB R iR
and desirability of performance-based remuneration; KEETHHESHRESRER=

5. reviewing and approving performance-based 5. 2EEFSTHRAABBAD

remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
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6. reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms
and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not
excessive for the Company;

7. reviewing and approving compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct
to ensure that such arrangements are determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that
any compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

8. ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

9. advising the shareholders on how to vote in respect of
any service contract of the Director which shall be subject
to the approval of shareholders (in accordance with Rule
13.68 of the Listing Rules).

Where circumstances are considered appropriate, some
Remuneration Committee decisions are approved by way of
written resolutions passed by all the Remuneration Committee
members.
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()

For the year ended 31 December 2021, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held and the attendance record was as
follows:

Committee member
EZEERE

REBEZE2-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H1
FE FNZESCRITMALE

BB ZhFREEmT

Attendance at meetings held for

the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_F-_-F+-A=+T-HLEE
FRBTERZHESR

Mr. Tam Sun Wing

EIE S

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
BXERE

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

REW KL

Mr. He Yi

BEE

During the meetings, the Remuneration Committee discussed
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. The Remuneration Committee had also discussed on
remuneration policy and performance assessment for executive
Directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 April
2007. It currently consists of one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Composition of the Nomination Committee for the year ended 31
December 2021 was as follows:

Mr. Ng Ge Bun (Chairman)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. He Yi
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Role and function

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference includes those
specific duties as set out in the code provision B.3.1 of the
CG Code. Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Nomination
Committee is required, amongst other things, to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations for changes as necessary, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships, to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. The Nomination Committee should meet at
least once a year and when the need arises.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying,
recruiting and evaluating new nominees to the Board and the
assessment of the qualifications of the Directors. The criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship
includes the candidate’s experience, professional knowledge,
integrity, time commitment and other statutory or regulatory
requirements.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy stating the key
nomination criteria and principles during nomination of Directors.
In identifying suitable candidates qualified to become Board
members, the Nomination Committee shall take into account
the Company’s current or future business model and specific
needs, the challenges and opportunities of the Company will
face, and skill set and expertise of candidates are required. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the candidates on merit
and contribution the candidate will bring to the Board with due
regard to the board diversity policy of the Company. The Board
will review the board diversity policy on an annual basis so as to
develop and review measurable objectives for the implementing
the board diversity policy and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held and the attendance record was as follows:

Committee member
ZEERE

WRE-E-—F+-A=+—HILER -
REZAERRIT-REH  AHEHRLE

FERERA0T ¢

Attendance at meeting held for

the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_F-_-F+-A=1T-HLEE
FRBTERZHESR

Mr. Ng Ge Bun
REWSEE

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
BKERE

Mr. Tam Sun Wing
AT

Mr. He Yi

BkAE

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board, it had also discussed the policy for nomination
of Directors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to protect shareholder’s interest. To
do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogue with shareholders
to communicate with them and encourage their participation through
annual general meetings or other general meetings.

Registered shareholders are notified by post for the shareholders’
meetings. The notice of meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and a postal voting form.

Any duly registered shareholder from time to time is entitled to attend
the annual and special general meetings, provided that their shares have
been recorded in the register of members of the Company (Bye-law 66).

Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting may complete
and return to the Share Registrar the proxy form enclosed with the notice
of meeting to give proxy to their representatives, another shareholder or
Chairman of the meetings.

Shareholders or investors can enquire by sending their enquiries to the
Company through the following means:

Hotline no. (852) 2804-2221

By post 28th Floor, Chinachem Century Tower,

178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholder(s) can by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company to require a special general meeting be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. To raise
such requisition, the shareholder(s) must have held at the date of deposit
of such requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying right to vote at general meetings of the Company
(Bye-law 58).

The meeting so requisitioned shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
requisition deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with section 74(3)
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (Bye-law 58).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

The Company Secretary of Kai Yuan Holdings Limited

28th Floor, Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Email : enquiry@kaiyuanholdings.com
Telephone No. (852) 2804-2221
(852) 2723-8571

Facsimile No.

The company secretary will forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Subject to Section 79 of The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, it shall be
the duty of the Company, on the requisition in writing of (i) any number
of members representing not less than one twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not less than
one hundred members, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the
Company otherwise resolves:

(a) to give to members of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and

(b) to circulate to members of the Company entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

Subject to Section 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of the Bermuda, notice
of any such intended resolution duly signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned (the requisitionist(s)), shall be deposited at the registered
office of the Company not less than six weeks before the meeting (in
the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less
than one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's
expenses in sending the notice and circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder concerned.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements in accordance with the
requirements under the provisions as stated in Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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AUDITORS REMUNERATION

It is the auditor’s responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those financial statements and to report their opinion
solely to the Company, as a body, in accordance with the Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
auditors’ report.

Apart from the provision of annual audit services, the Group's external
auditors also provided interim review of the Group’s results and taxation
advisory service of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Ernst & Young, the external
auditors provided following services to the Group:
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SN BEN LK R A B AR AR KB
BEAT AR

Ernst & Young
RABEEHFT
HKS'000

FET

B RT
%55 AR %5

Audit services
Taxation services

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Audit Committee assisted the Board to perform its duties to maintain
an effective and sound internal control system for the Group. The Audit
Committee reviewed the Group’s procedures and workflow for the
financial, operational and compliance, and also the risk assessment and its
initiatives for business risks management and control. Recommendations
will also be put forward to the Board for consideration and approval.
The Group has an internal audit function. During the Year, the Company
engaged an independent internal control consultant to carry out review
on risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
review report had been presented to the Audit Committee to review, and
nothing had come to the Audit Committee’s or the Board's attention to
believe that risk management and internal control systems of the Group
were inadequate or ineffective. Please refer to the section headed “Risk
Management and Internal Control Report” for further details.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR

THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities and the Company has
established a policy on the handling and dissemination of inside
information (“Inside Information”). The inside information policy concerns
the handling and the dissemination of the Inside Information as follows:

Handling of Inside Information

1. an officer of the Company with appropriate skills has been
assigned to identify any potential Inside Information and to
escalate any such Inside Information to the attention of the Board;

2. the Company should, as soon as reasonably practicable after
any Inside Information has come to our knowledge, disclose the
Inside Information to the public, unless the Inside Information falls
within any of the safe harbours as provided in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Charter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and

3. before the Inside Information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company should ensure that the Inside Information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Board believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Company should immediately disclose
the Inside Information to the public.

Dissemination of Inside Information

Inside Information will be announced promptly through the websites
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.com.hk) and the Company
(www.kaiyuanholdings.com).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, the company secretary for the year ended
31 December 2021, was a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company'’s affairs. The company secretary
reported to the Board and had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

To enhance its transparency, the Company encourages dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts. Extensive information about the
Company'’s activities is provided in its interim and annual reports,
which are sent to shareholders and interested parties. The Company’s
news releases, announcements and publications are circulated timely,
to all major news media. The same materials are also available on the
Company's website. Media briefings are organized when necessary
to relay details of the Group's latest business initiatives and market
development plans. These activities keep the public aware of the Group's
activities and foster effective communication.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the following shareholders RNEE-_T-_—F+-_A=1+—HBILFE -
meeting was held by the Company: RATBBRITUTREAE :
Voting at
Date Venue Type of Meeting Particulars the Meeting
=p 13 Ef b 5 BLAETRR
28 May 2021 Board Room, Level 1, Annual General Meeting 1. To receive and consider audited financial By Poll

South Pacific Hotel,
23 Morrison Hill Road,
Wanchai Hong Kong

statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the corresponding reports of the
Directors and auditors

2. Tore-elect Directors and to authorise the Board
to fix their remuneration

3. Tore-appoint Emnst & Young as the auditors of
the Company and authorise the Board to fix
their remuneration

4. To approve the general mandates to issue and

repurchase shares of the Company

5. Toapprove the refreshment of scheme mandate

limit under the share option scheme
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR FOR 2021

Event

Eis

—EC-FHBAERw

Date/Proposed Date
A ERETEY

Announcement of 2021 annual results

N _T_—F2FRE

Annual General Meeting

BFBAFAE

Announcement of 2022 interim result

N FRHFEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW

Kai Yuan Holdings Limited (the “Kai Yuan” or “Company” and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group” or “We") are pleased to
present the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report
(the “Report”) which outlines our approaches, strategies, and practices
in relation to the sustainability development. We strive for a responsible
business manner such that we create inspiring values for our stakeholders
and contribute to a more sustainable planet.

The Paris Marriott Hotel has been temporarily closed at a significant time
throughout the period from the imposition of the first national lockdown
in Paris since 17 March 2020, the Hotel was reopened on 15 June 2021,
due to the relaxation of lockdown measure. We will stay resilient to ensure
our business continuity during this unprecedented and challenging
pandemic.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report covered the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
(the "Reporting Period”). This Report mainly focuses on our core business
segment — Hotel operation of the Paris Marriott Hotel in Paris, France (the
"Hotel” or the “Paris Marriott Hotel”). If there is any change in the scope,
we will explain the difference and reason for the change in the Report.

This Report has been prepared in accordance with disclosure
requirements and the “comply or explain” provisions under the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”)
set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of HKEX.

The preparation of the Report was underpinned by the following three
reporting principles:

Materiality: The Group has identified ESG issues by conducting
stakeholder engagement and considering business nature and
development.

Quantitative: This Report has disclosed key performance indicators
("KPIs") in a quantitative manner where appropriate.
Consistency: This Report applies consistent statistical
methodologies for meaningful comparisons of ESG data
over time. In case of any changes in the reporting scope or
methodologies, they shall be explained in the appendix for
stakeholders’ reference.
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This Report is available in English and Chinese and is uploaded to the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Group's
website (http://www.kaiyuanholdings.com). In case of any discrepancies
between the two versions, the English version shall prevail.

We sincerely welcome your comments and suggestions regarding this
Report and our sustainability performance. Please feel free to provide your
comments via email at enquiry@kaiyuanholdings.com.

Stakeholder Engagement

Engagement with stakeholders helps us find the right direction in
sustainability. We maintain ongoing dialogues with our stakeholders
(including but not limited to employees, management and suppliers)
such that we actively collect their views to boost the growth of both the
Group and benefit our stakeholders. Due to the legal and confidentiality
concern from Marriott International, Hotel guests, employees and
suppliers are not covered in the stakeholder engagement in this Report.
Meanwhile, we communicate with other stakeholders through formal
and informal communication channels, including but not limited
to questionnaires, emails, hotlines, social media, physical meetings,
assessments, reports, etc. It enables us to recognise our strengths and
weaknesses to better devise our business strategies in responding to their
needs and expectations, anticipating potential risks, and strengthening
key relationships.

Materiality Assessment
The information collected throughout the stakeholder engagement
serves as an underlying basis to identify key ESG issues. We have identified
five key issues that both our stakeholders and the Group consider
significant to formulate the foundation to our ESG objectives and the
scope of this ESG report. In the future, we will continue to seek ways to
enhance our stakeholder engagement process.
List of key ESG issues:

Combating climate change

Water consumption

Health and safety for employees and guests

Supply chain management

Labour practices
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) takes the ultimate responsibility
for overseeing the ESG performance. The Board is committed to
achieving the Group's strategic ESG objectives by risks identification and
management, sustainability performance evaluation and monitoring
within the Group through regular risk assessment and internal control
review. In addition, we have engaged an independent ESG consultant
to assist the Group in preparing this Report and provide ESG related
consultancy services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We believe that sound internal control, risk management and compliance
systems are the foundation for embracing good corporate governance.
The Group is committed to upholding high standards of business
integrity, honesty, ethics and transparency in our operations. For
more detail of our corporate governance practices, please refer to our
Corporate Governance Report.

OUR RESPONSES TO THE CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC
In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have taken
various precautionary measures at the workplace to minimise the risk
of social contacting and spreading the virus to safeguard the health
of our employees and guests. Our Hotel manager has made several
enhancements to the practices throughout the Hotel area and in guest
rooms during operation.

These include:

Enhanced Public Space Cleaning: We have increased the frequency
of cleaning and disinfection, particularly in areas with high traffic,
including restrooms, elevators, and escalators.

Public facility: Hand sanitising stations are being installed at Hotel
entrances, at our front desks, our elevator banks, and meeting
spaces. Signage in public spaces will remind Hotel guests to
maintain social distancing.

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE): Staff members must wear
PPE (e.g. face coverings, gloves, etc.) based on the activities they
are performing and directions from the local authorities. Guests
wearing personal face coverings are mandatory.
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Electrostatic Spraying: We are utilising enhanced technologies,
including electrostatic sprayers with hospital-grade disinfectants,
to support our already rigorous cleanliness protocols.

Room Amenities: Every guest room is thoroughly cleaned and
disinfected prior to the arrival of visitors. Disinfectant wipes are
also available in the room for every arriving guest as well as upon
request.

Sanitary pass and security check: Security will check the usage of
sanitary pass (i.e. TousAntiCovid) for every person entering the
Hotel.

Food and beverage: Contactless and paperless QR codes are
adopted for food and beverage orderings. Any room service and
take-away items are individually wrapped. In-room coffee makers
are not available, but guests can request contactless coffee
delivery.

Waste disposal: We placed lidded bins for the disposal of the used
face masks, gloves and other sanitary products.

On the other hand, we are determined to provide a safe working
environment for our employees. With this regard, our Hotel manager has
implemented comprehensive hygiene and infection control practices,
including:

Provide workers with education and training on COVID-19 risk
factors and protective behaviours (e.g. maintain social distancing,
cough etiquette, and care of PPE) before the Hotel re-opening.

Circulate clear guideline "COVID-19 Protocol” at every department

Minimise contact among workers, clients, and customers by
replacing face-to-face meetings with virtual communications if
feasible.

Restrict the number of personnel entering certain areas, such as
lift, check-in and check-out areas.

Provide workers with PPE needed to keep them safe while
performing their jobs.

Facilitate air ventilation in the work environment.

Increase the frequency of cleaning and disinfection in the
workplace.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Emissions

We recognise the potential impact on the environment during our
operation and are committed to operating our businesses in an
environmentally responsible manner. It is our policy to minimise
emissions relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge
into water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. We work closely with the Hotel manager to restraint emissions
and continue to improve our environmental performance. The Hotel
conserves resources by reducing unnecessary waste of electricity and
water at source and enhancing environmental awareness of Hotel staff
and guests by providing training, warm reminders and interacting
with our guests. We also communicate our policies and requirements
toward environmental protection with our contractors and suppliers to
collaborate their effort in environmental protection.

Compliance
The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations such as
French Environmental Code and French Energy Code.

During the Reporting Period, we did not notice any non-compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharge into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

Our major source of emission includes (1) greenhouse gas which is
generated from town gas and electricity; (2) garbage generated by our
Hotel guests and office; and (3) food waste generated during our food
and beverage services at the Paris Marriott Hotel. Due to the nature of
the Hotel business, we did not generate hazardous waste (as defined by
regulations in France).
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Emission Type 2021 Unit
HRYES —EBE--F Ef
Air emissions
BERBEH
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) 2862  Kg
A& /NIy
Sulphur oxides (SOx) 414 Kg
k=Kl /NIy
Particulate matter (PM) 577  Kg
BIFRF /NIy
Greenhouse gas emissions
BEREBHKE
Total (Scope 1 & Scope 2) 44538  Tonnes of CO, equivalent
Bt (BE—-REE) WE— A biREE
Scope 1 4239  Tonnes of CO, equivalent
#HE— WE—SEALIREE
Scope 2 402.99  Tonnes of CO, equivalent
#E— WE—ELiRE S
Intensity (per room night) 17.70 kg of CO, equivalent/room night
nE(BRFEZ®R) DFZEUtREE BHET®
Intensity (per m? of gross floor area) 25.14 kg of CO, equivalent/m’
T (TR REEE) D SCHE R,/ Ik
Non-hazardous waste
BEZEEY
Total waste generated 54547  Tonnes
FREXBEENEE U
Glass 179.10  Tonnes
W 7]
Food waste 463  Tonnes
ERHIR i
Paper 0.24  Tonnes
R 145
Other general refuse 361.50 Tonnes
H At — AR REY) g
Intensity (per room night) 21.68  kg/room night
wE(BEFEE®) R/ BHEET%
Intensity (per m? of gross floor area) 30.78  kg/m?
BE(BFHARERE) DI/ EFK
Disposed waste 361.50  Tonnes
EREMERY g
Recycled waste 183.97  Tonnes
B B H BEEY) Mg
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Note 1: The air emission are calculated based on the methodology suggested
in the “Steps for ESG Reporting — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs" published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Note 2: The amount of other general refuse was estimated by considering the
volume of a rubbish collection bin and the frequency of collection.

Note 3: The Hotel had been temporarily closed due to the outbreak of COV19 from
17 March 2020 and reopened on 15 June 2021, resulting in a significant
decrease in air emission, greenhouse gas emission and non-hazardous
waste.

Note 4: The greenhouse gas emission are calculated based on the methodology
suggested in the “Steps for ESG Reporting — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Our Group strives to take care of our planet while providing an ideal
experience for our guests. Also, Marriott International introduced
Recycling, Waste and Hazardous Waste Disposal guidelines to the Hotel.
We aim to properly handle and to reduce emissions and waste by the
following measures:

Actively manage the use of electricity to reduce indirect
greenhouse gas emission;

Works collaboratively with different wastes recycling partners to
trim down the tonnage;

Recycle organic wastes with bio-wastes partners to turn wastes
into compost and biogas; and

Recycle food waste, used oil, lamps, batteries, metal, plastic, glass
and paper through working with different recycling companies.

During the Hotel's temporary closure, the Hotel has planned to conduct
a renovation to be commenced in 2022, which might help to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions. The renovation plan includes:

Replacement of all guest rooms’ air-conditioning;

Replacement of all windows to grant better noise reduction and
energy-saving performance;

Replacement of kitchen installations;

Replacement of the low-voltage general switchboard; and
Replacement of the ventilation systems, engines, and
waterproofing of the roof.
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RIR - HERERBHE

A2. Use of Resources

1. Energy

During the course of our business, we consume an array of resources
ranging from electricity, water, town gas to food ingredients used in
our food and beverage services. It is our policy to monitor each aspect
closely to make sure we are operating in a cost-effective, sustainable and
responsible business manner. Due to the nature of the Hotel business, we
do not have material consumption of any packaging materials during the
course of our operation.

Our Group targets to enhance the energy efficiency of the Hotel by
managing the electricity reduction at sources, such as guest rooms, public
area, restrooms, parking lots and other facilities. During the Reporting
Period, we have improved our energy management by implementing a
number of energy-saving initiatives to optimise our usage of resources:

Energy efficiency initiatives
Turn off unnecessary lighting and air-conditioning.
Set and maintain standard indoor temperature.
Review regularly our environmental policy and energy-saving
plan.
Closely monitor on energy consumption pattern and take
necessary actions if irregular usage is noticed.
Motion detectors are installed in back-office areas, public area,
restrooms and meeting rooms. LED lightings are installed at
back offices and LED motion sensor lightings are installed in the
parking staircase.
Programmable thermostats are adopted in guest rooms and
meeting facilities.
Window sensors were installed in all guest rooms to switch off air-
the conditioning system when windows are opened.
Educate and inspire associates and guests to conserve and
preserve.
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R - dgRERRE

2. Water 2. K

Water is a basic necessity to all livings on earth, but water resource is KB EFTELEGHEARANT R - BKE
scarce. For this reason, it is our policy to uphold best practices on water RAVEMELR - Bt - BRAIWBE S EEE
management throughout our operations. During the Reporting Period, ELBRRTREKEREENSRETE - %
the Group had no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose due to WMERAA - AN B EEEB L M R AL
its business natures and geographical locations. We target optimise EMEER/KBESEFAERE - M BE

water usage and enhance water efficiency by improving our water ERBLZEGMKBERSHEMOKERE
management through a number of water-saving initiatives to: B #mECRKELIRRAKBE
Water efficiency initiatives gk gt
Encouraging guests to save water and reuse linen and towel . FEEAEANEBBE DR KU RE
during their stay; %ﬁ%f SREM
Close monitoring on water consumption pattern and take action if . EERFEKENX WRBEETAEE
irregular usage is noticed; %EFH IR ERERATED
Adoption of low-flow water faucets in guest rooms and common . EERARAM T HEAKRS/KEERE
areas;
Introduction of water savers, low-flow showerheads and tap o EHFAREAZES|AGKE  BEis
aerators in all guest bathrooms; {EBEE RIKBESRIR MR
Installation of water-efficient commercial dishwashers and . *”im)ﬂmkaﬁ)ﬂ/ﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ&/ﬁﬁ
washing machines (except the washing machine in the kitchen); (B R 2 SRR IN)
and
Installation of low-flow pre-rinse spray valves in kitchen. . EHRLZHEETEE LR -
Resource Type 2021  Unit
ERESE —E-—F B
Energy consumption
BEIRHFE
In total 3,105,436.60 kWh
#5 T FLBF
In electricity 1,291,472.00  kWh
= TR
In steam production 986,255.00  kWh
EREE TREF
In chilled water 770,000.00  kWh
”RK FEB
In non-renewable fuel 57,709.60  kWh
IR EMRE TREF
Intensity (per room night) 12340  kWh/room night
RE(BEEE%R) TERE/BHES®R
Intensity (per m? of gross floor area) 17526 kWh/m?
RE(GEEERE) FEEFHK
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RIR - HERERBHE

Resource Type 2021 Unit

EREE —EBE--F Ef

Water consumption 11,569.00 m?

FEkE SFOK
Intensity (per room night) 046  m3room night
wE(5EHEE%) MR BEEER
Intensity (per m? of gross floor area) 065 m3¥m?
ZE(GRERE) SLFR TR

Chilled water for cooling system
2RI RPTE Y2 7K
Intensity (per room night)
EE(BEEE®)
Intensity (per m? of gross floor area)

TE(FZEmE)

Note 5: The Hotel was temporarily closed due to the outbreak of COVID-19 from
17 March 2020 and reopened on 15 June 2021, resulting in a significant
decrease in energy consumption.

A3.The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group promotes sustainability in every aspect of our operation, such
as light and noise pollution reduction, biodiversity conservation, carbon
footprint reduction and sustainable corporate development. During the
Reporting Period, we did not notice our operations have a significant
impact on the environment and natural resources.

A4. Climate Change

Climate change is aggravating, and climate-related risks are imminent.
Physical risks such as severe heat waves and flooding due to rising sea
levels could adversely affect the Hotel’s operation, health and safety of
employees and guests. Thus, we work closely with the Hotel manager
and with Marriott International. Marriott International Serve 360, the
2025 Sustainability and Social Impact Goals for Marriott International are
adopted as the Hotel’s goal and strategic actions for combating climate
change. These include but are not limited to using bamboo straws
instead of plastic straws, placing recycling bins and promoting green
energy consumption within the Hotel.
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B.SOCIAL

B1. Employment

It is our policy to value the differences between people and work
diligently in providing equal opportunity and anti-discrimination.
Our employment decision is only based on one’s working ability and
disregard their gender, race, ethnicity, sexual orientation, disability, etc.
We review our remuneration policies and packages annually to ensure our
employees are fairly treated. We grant discretionary bonuses to qualified
employees based on operation results and individual performance. Our
employees are also entitled to medical insurance, participation in the
mandatory provident fund and paid leaves.

Employees working in the Hotel (“Hotel Staff”) are employed and
managed by Marriott International. However, we work closely with
the Hotel manager to ensure they have consistent policies with us in
handling employee matters and are compliant with all relevant laws and
regulations in the area in which the Hotel operates. As of 31 December
2021, we had seven employees working for the Group, excluding the
Hotel Staff, in Hong Kong and Luxembourg and our employee turnover
rate is 0%.

Compliance

The Group strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the French Labor Code. We were not aware
of any material non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, other benefits and welfare,
occupational health and safety, child and forced labour and other laws
and regulations during the Reporting Period.
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During the Reporting Period, the employee distribution by gender and REEHFE - BEMERIFIFROMUOT ©
age are as follows.

By gender Male 6
biog k]l SH
Female 1

ogid

By age 21-30 1
BFBR 21-308%
31-40 1
31-40%%
41-50 2
41-508%
51-60 2
51-605%
60 above 1
605% A

By geographical region Hong Kong 6
R0 IR R 1 BB
Luxembourg 1
ERE

By employment type Full time 5
RESER g
Part time or contract 2

REHAEH
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B2. Health and Safety

We believe that productivity comes from a healthy workforce. It is our
policy to provide a healthy and safe working environment for employees.
We remind our employees to increase their awareness of occupational
safety. The Hotel manager strictly complies with the relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to French Labor Code Part IV
entitled "Health and Safety at Work”. During the Reporting Period, we
have implemented several measures to ensure the health and safety of
employees:

Established a Crisis Plan with detailed crisis management
procedures and visual guides.

Set up an Emergency Response Team with direct contacts.
Developed an internal accident instant reporting system, “MIRA".
Implemented pandemic preventive measures according to the
COVID-19 Protocol.

Pandemic training was provided to all staff before the Hotel re-
opening.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, no work-related fatalities or injuries and lost
days due to work injury were recorded in the past three years, including
the Reporting Period.

B3. Development and Training

It is our policy that all new employees are required to attend orientation
training to ensure that they are familiar with our corporate values and
goals and to ensure that the employees understand their role in our
Group. Other training performed during the Reporting Period include
business ethics, anti-corruption, etc. Employees are also encouraged
to attend seminars relevant to their position to enhance their work
capability.
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During the Reporting Period, the percentage of employees trained and
the average training hours of each employee by gender and employee
category are as follows.

RBEEHA - KR - BEENOEWNET
BRI B R B 8 TR P95 aIRs 8un T -

Percentage Average training hours
Bk 1955 F &

By gender
gl
Male 83 9
S
Female 0 0
M
By employee category
RIESER
Senior management 100 18
RREEE
Middle management and general staff 60 4
PREEER—REBE
B4. Labour Standards B4. % T %8|

It is our policy that we are against the usage of child and forced labour.
Our recruitment policy forbids the hiring of child or forced labour, and we
will not purchase from any supplier who is doing so. During the Reporting
Period, we have implemented several measures to prevent any cases of
child and forced labour:

Confirm the identities of newly recruited employees to verify their
ages;

Sign contract with newly recruited employees to prevent forced
labours; and

Should any cases of child or forced labour be discovered, an
investigation will be carried out immediately, and the recruitment
procedure will be reviewed for room of improvement.
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Compliance

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the European Convention for the Protection
of Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms. During the Reporting
Period, there was no usage of child and forced labour noticed.

B5. Supply Chain Management

Hotel operation involves a number of procurement categories, including
furniture, fixtures and equipment, Hotel amenities, ingredient for food
and beverages, office supplies and different kinds of maintenance and
professional services. It is our policy to ensure our suppliers are operating
in an environmentally and socially responsible manner; therefore, we
work closely with the Hotel manager to ensure responsible procurement
is in place, which is consistent with our approach to sustainability. During
the Reporting Period, the Hotel has 282 major suppliers, of which 233 are
from France and 49 are from other countries.

The Paris Marriott Hotel has in place a clear Supplier Code of Conduct,
Preferred Supplier Summary List and a Sustainability Assessment Program
to provide environmental and social guidelines to their suppliers.
They work closely to push and encourage their suppliers to ensure the
Supplier’s Sustainability Policies are followed.

In an environmental aspect, the Paris Marriott Hotel has followed Marriott
International’s initiatives such as removing injected moulded foam
products, choosing sustainable seafood, using cage-free eggs, using pork
that is free from gestation crates, ensuring down and feather products are
from humane sources. Regarding social aspects, the Paris Marriott Hotel
follows Marriott's Global Employment and Human Rights principles and
expect their suppliers to have safe and secure working environments,
non-discrimination, avoid using child and forced labour. Annual review
of the Preferred Supplier Summary List and Supplier Screening Program
is in place to monitor their suppliers to work in an environmentally and
socially responsible manner. During the Reporting Period, approximately
20 suppliers have been selected for evaluation.

RIR - HERERBHE
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B6. Product Responsibility

We believe that high-quality service is essential to maintain a long-
term relationship with our customers. It is our policy to provide services
with impeccable quality. The Hotel has in place its own “Standard
Operation Procedures” and “Quality Assurance Program” to ensure guests
satisfaction, and all Hotel staff are well trained with respective standards
and procedures to deliver high-quality services. Self-audit and third-party
audits are performed regularly throughout the Reporting Period to ensure
the Hotel is providing the best and most consistent customer experience
in terms of service, condition, cleanliness and operations standards.

Guest satisfaction

Paris Marriott Hotel is classified and recognised as a five-star Hotel by
the République Francaise (French Republic), honouring its outstanding
service standards. In addition to actively collecting information to
understand customer experiences and in place of complaint handling
procedures, Paris Marriott Hotel developed a guest feedback program —
internally branded "Guest Voice”. A guest satisfaction system that
integrates a shorter, simpler guest and event satisfaction survey with
social media (reviews, posts, tweets, etc.) into a single user dashboard,
enabling the Hotel to act on issues and concerns without missing
any opinion from guests and facilitate a timely response. During the
Reporting Period, the Hotel received no major complaints relating to
services provided. The duty manager, executive committees and relative
personnel have reviewed the complaints and discussed the responses
and improvements. All complaints were handled timely to ensure the
satisfaction of guests.

Guest safety

Our number one priority is to safeguard the well-being of both the
customers as well as our staff. Surveillance cameras are installed at
Hotel entrances and exits for security purposes. Our Hotel operator also
conducts self-audit on operations and brand programs regularly. Once
the Hotel operator finds any non-compliance of food safety and fire or life
safety with self-audit standards, it will be resolved as soon as possible in
achieving safe operation. Apart from these, a comprehensive Crisis Plan
sets out contingency response procedures under different emergency
and crisis scenarios, including but not limited to terrorist attacks, fires
and physical injuries, to protect the Hotel and customers from inevitable
threats.
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Personal data protection practice

With the EU’s General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) coming into
effect on 25 May 2018, we have worked closely with our Hotel manager
and Marriott to ensure compliance measures are in place. Our Hotel
manager has undertaken a significant amount of work to ensure the Hotel
is GDPR ready. The Hotel has further strengthened its data governance
and privacy programs, as well as its centralised systems, in preparation
for the GDPR implementation. A number of specific actions include, but
are not limited to, the update of procedures to ensure an appropriate
response is made to individual rights requests from our guests and
associates as required under GDPR. The Hotel manager has updated
terms and conditions of loyalty programs, privacy statements and
notices, as well as Hotel registration cards to encompass GDPR principles.
They will also ask customers for their consent before any release of
personal information if necessary. The Hotel manager has conducted
a holistic review of marketing and digital processes and policies to
ensure accountability and data governance. The Hotel manager has
updated contracts with new privacy language to ensure the Hotel is
fully compliant with GDPR as well as other relevant personal data privacy
regulations in France.

Compliance

Due to the nature of the Hotel business, we have no products sold or
shipped subjected to recalls for safety and health reasons. The Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on health and safety,
advertising, labelling, intellectual property rights and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
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B7. Anti-corruption

We believe it is of paramount importance that businesses are conducted
in accordance with applicable rules, regulations and social standards.
The virtue of integrity, honesty and fairness have been given the highest
priorities. No such rules, regulations or standards should be traded in
exchange for business benefits or even for as small as guest feedback.
Anti-corruption trainings are provided to directors and staff to enhance
their awareness.

All Hotel staff are required to stringently abide by the anti-corruption
guidelines and policies of the Hotel where bribery in any form is
prohibited. In cases when breaching of anti-corruption guidelines
are spotted, disciplinary actions, including immediate termination of
employment and involvement of local authorities, would be taken.
Whistle-blowing hotline and online channel are set up for staff to
report any extortion, money laundering, fraud, bribery and corruption.
Whistleblowers can come forward on the condition of anonymity to
protect themselves from retaliation.

Marriott International Policies (MIP) Anti-corruption Training is provided
to all the Hotel’s employees annually, with an aim to educate our staff
about anti-corruption and business integrity.

Compliance

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Sapin II: “Law on Transparency, Anti-
corruption Measures and the Modernisation of the Economy”. During the
Reporting Period, no legal case was filed against the Hotel or its employee
with regard to corruption issues.

B8. Community Investment

It is our policy to encourage our employees and Hotel manager to
participate in and support community services in order to lead a healthy
and balanced lifestyle.

The Hotel manager actively shared knowledge about global issues and
related topics with employees through internal newsletters in order
to promote better understanding and a deeper appreciation for the
contributions and struggles of people and cultures different from one's
own and thus encourage them to participate in various community
activities. In the future, the Group will also focus on areas related to our
operations, community and public welfare activities whenever possible.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and
review a sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems. An enterprise risk management ("ERM”) framework is in place to
implement risk management and internal control effectively.

Our risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the Company’s
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or losses.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Effective risk management resides at all levels of the Group. Staff in
different business units identify and manage risks during their daily
operation, the management is responsible for identifying, assessing
and responding to risks at strategic level. Reporting to the Board, the
Audit Committee reviews and monitors major risks and effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems. Through this top down
and bottom up approach, together with independent review by the
independent internal control consultant, assisted the Group to manage
its major risks in an effective manner.

Risk Management Structure
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BAREELEE
The Board
BEEg EERREERERANIDEILHE

Oversees the risk management and internal control systems;

Determines the Group's business strategies and risk appetite;

BEAKEZEHREMARARE

Reviews at least annually the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

systems; and
=L EFE—

e R TR M A BREEAE IR 2 P e

Monitors the risk management and internal control systems in an on-going manner.

FEERARETERARPEAEHE

Oversees the evaluation and improvement process of risk management and internal
control systems;

EERREEMAMERENE IR RLERF

Audit Committee

BREEE

Reviews the Group's risk register; and

BZHAKECRREREERM &

Reviews and approves the internal control review plan and review results.
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Risk Management Structure

B E RS
Management and staff - ldentify and monitor all risks relevant to daily operations of the Group;
EEEMET BRAREREAKEBEEKECEEBAAERR

Report to the Board and the Audit Committee on the risks identified including strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks and its changes during the Year;
MEFGRERZESERSHILERNER - BFERK - €8 UK Bl
BREFHTEZRERMBBREBNFRN ZE$ER

Implement and execute and on-going monitor risk management and internal control
processes; and
Bift - T RFEERRRER RANRETRF 0 &

Develop and execute appropriate action plans to mitigate the risk-identified and to
resolve material internal control defects.

HERMITEENITEE - UREEBERZER - ARBRERA LT

R P o
Internal audit function and - Outsource the internal audit function to an independent internal control consultant;
external auditors 1SR EBEAZ TAEINA T 87 N EPES 1 RARS

M ERE AT AR M SNIE A BR A
Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems;

WA AN B R R E IR N M ERER TR I 2 AR

The scope of the internal control review is risk-based and is reviewed by the Audit
Committee;

ARSI R < BIEARRAKE  TEHERZZESE R

Communicate review result directly to the Audit Committee; and
HEZZESEEBERANER R

External auditors are also able to communicate internal control issues they noticed
during their audit to the Audit Committee directly.
SNERBEI T M ER R E SR AR EEEIBRETHE 2 N ERE -
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The risk management process defined the procedures for identifying,
assessing, responding and monitoring risks and their changes. The
management discusses regularly with each operating functions to collect
their views towards the risks they have identified at operation level, and
to strengthen their understanding to risk management at the Group's
strategic view level to foster two way communication. Risk identification
is a continuous and interactive process, major risks are communicate
between the bottom and the top.

Define risk
universe

FE R R EE

Monitoring and
report changes

B3 I #R45 E)

Mitigate risks
FE R B

BEREERAREZERE

REEERF
RERRFREB@HEG - fFHE - BHE R
ERRRMEESH I ERF - EEEEHES
LEAMETHR  NREEMEZEREE
ERAHRzERNER - X REEEER
BB Em NG T HRARER  UEEE
MR - BRERIR —EREEHEF - B
Mgt TREESAZZRR

|dentify risks
aa

Assess risks
identified

HED S

Bl o AR R B2

Significant risks are classified into one of the four categories: strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance. After identified all
relevant risks, the management assesses the potential impact and
possibilities of the risks and prioritise the risks, appropriate internal control
measures are then developed to mitigate the risks. Also, effectiveness
of internal control measures and changes of risks are monitored in an
on-going manner and are communicated to the Board and the Audit
Committee to allow their monitoring at the top level.
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BEREERAREZERE

MAIN FEATURES OF OUR RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Maintain an effective internal control system at operational level
Establish clear internal control policies and procedures, clearly
define the responsibilities, authorities and accountabilities of each
key positions;

Establish code of conduct, explain the Group's requirements on
integrity and ethical value to all staff;

Establish whistle blowing mechanism, encourage employees to
report incidents of misconduct or fraud;

Establish appropriate level of information technology access rights,
avoid leakage of price sensitive information; and

Establish insider information disclosure policy, including reporting
channels and responsible person of disclosure, unified response
to external enquiries and obtain advices from professionals or the
Stock Exchange, if necessary.

In evaluating the effectiveness of internal control systems, the Board has
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

On-going risk monitoring at risk management level

The management identifies and mitigates major risks according to the risk
management process, the identified risks are summarised in risk register
and submitted to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review
together with a 3-year internal control review plan to enable the Board
and the Audit Committee effectively monitor major risks of the Group and
how the risks are managed. Major risks relevant to the Group are shown
on pages 60 to 63 of this annual report.
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BT R ASPEE &

Independent review B

The Group had appointed an independent internal control consultant AREBECZEB I ANPELEMETAFEE
to conduct an internal control review' for the Year, the scope of review ZANEBEEE G c RENESEBERE T - —
has covered the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021. The F—A—HE-_ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—8H
results of the internal control review has been submitted to the Audit Rl o NEPESIEMEI VERDIRRBRERELED
Committee.

The management had established remediation and improvement plan ERECDOHME B L RE A EBEIE ISR T T

for internal control weaknesses identified. Nothing had come to the Audit AR R ETE  c ERETEeREESNE

Committee’s or the Board's attention to believe that risk management BHETMEEREUNSEREAER 2 RABE

and internal control systems of the Group were inadequate or ineffective. I8 N N EPES IR E BN R S R o

0 The internal control review performed by the internal control consultant 1 A 2B B4 120 B8 5 BT VB 2 T 3 BS #2524 50 3 1~ 8
does not constitute an assurance engagement made in accordance with KBEESST A B M (BEAEETHE
the Hong Kong Standards on Auditing, Hong Kong Standards on Review B (BAEMREBEL)SK(EBZER
or Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagement issued by the Hong FEXER| ) METT 2B REE -

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors present their annual report and audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries comprise hotel operation and money lending.
The principal activities and other particulars of subsidiaries of the Group
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Paris Marriott Hotel from the hotel operation
segment was reopened on 15 June 2021, since the temporary closure
from 17 March 2020, after the declaration of the gradual relaxation of the
lockdown policy in France. As at the date of this report, France lifted most
coronavirus restrictions, allowing mega events, public places, restaurants,
and cinema to carry on business as usual. However, the coronavirus
continues to evolve into different virus strains, causing uncertainty to the
tourism industry in France. During the Year, the financial performance
of major subsidiary (“Associate Subsidiary”) of the associate company
in which the Group owns 37.125% equity investment, the Associate
Subsidiary had also involved in certain cases of litigation regarding
outstanding balance on construction of its production plant. Provision
for impairment on the equity investment and expected credit loss on the
loan granted and interest receivables were recorded accordingly during
the Year. The Group also recorded the fair value loss on the unsecured
Convertible Bonds due to the closing share price of the Convertible Bonds
issuer had fallen to below the conversion price as at 31 December 2021.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group’s hotel operation segment and money lending segment as
determined by the Board. The content below is not intended to be an
exhaustive list of all the risks and uncertainties that may arise.

Hotel Operation

(i) Operational risks
Notwithstanding the active monitoring and supervision of
performance of the Hotel by the Group, daily operations of the
Hotel are delegated to the hotel manager, pursuant to hotel
management agreement signed with third party hotel manager.
Dependent on the ability of hotel manager, the failure of hotel
manager to manage the hotel in an efficient and effective manner
could have a material adverse effect on financial results of the
Group.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Furthermore, if any of the hotel management agreements
are terminated prior to their expiration, we may experience
disruptions to our operations, and will then be required to seek for
replacement of hotel manager.

Finally, the Hotel is operated under brand name of the hotel
manager. As a result, the continuation on revenue generation
relies on the success of the hotel manager in maintaining
reputation and enhancing the recognition of their brand.

Competition

The Group owns a Hotel in France in which the hospitality
industry is highly competitive due to ongoing supply of new
hotels and renovation of existing hotel properties. The intensity
of competition is affected by a range of factors including political
stability of country where the Hotel is located, regional and global
economic conditions, convenience of location, interior design
and amenities offered, as well as travel pattern of customers. The
Group is committed to offer the best of our services and hotel
experience to our guests.

Economic and market risks

The Group's business is exposed to risks of unfavourable
movements in the global and regional economies and financial
markets, in particular to the markets where the Hotel is located.
Change in economic conditions would lead to recession, inflation,
deflation, currency fluctuations, availability of financing, interest
rates and other factors that are beyond control of the Group.
Occurrence of any of the above may reduce revenue, increase
operating costs and lower asset value of the Group.

Terrorism, diseases and natural disasters

The Group's business could be adversely impacted by acts of
God, natural disasters, wars, terrorist attacks, riots, diseases and
other events beyond our control. The Group cannot predict the
occurrence of these events. An increased threat of terrorism
would affect travel patterns and reduce the number of travellers
of different categories. All of the above events would eventually
adversely affect the business and financial performance of our
Hotel.

(i)

(i)

(iv)
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(vi)

(vii)

Indebtedness and interest rates

The Group maintains certain level of indebtedness to partly
finance the hotel property investment. The indebtedness level
could increase the vulnerability of the Group to adverse general
economic or industry conditions, and restrict the Group from
making strategic acquisitions or taking advantage of business
opportunities. Hence, increase in interest rates could materially
and adversely affect the results of the Group.

Foreign exchange fluctuations

The Group has operations in France, Luxembourg, the PRC and
Hong Kong, where transactions and cash flow are denominated
mainly in Euro, Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. Therefore, the Group’s financial results are exposed
to foreign exchange risk as a result of fluctuation in currency
exchange rates.

Information technology systems

The Group is dependent on information technology systems
provided by the hotel manager and by other third parties to
monitor and operate the day-to-day operations of the Hotel.
These systems include booking, check-in/check-out, management
of rooms and collection of payment etc. Any disruption of these
systems could result in the Hotel failing to operate. Furthermore,
operations of the above systems are also subject to information
security and cyber threats. The Group together with the hotel
manager will consistently review, maintain or upgrade these
information technology systems when required to minimize
system down-time and defend against cyber threats.
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Money Lending

(i) Credit risk
A credit risk is the risk of default on a loan that may arise from
borrowers failing to meet loan repayment obligation when due.
To control credit risk, the Group requires borrowers to provide
sufficient collaterals before mortgage loans will be granted.
We will also regularly monitor and review our loan portfolio.
Notwithstanding these measures, the Group might still suffer
from financial loss if the economic climate in Hong Kong changes
adversely and abruptly so that net proceeds from disposal of
collaterals might become insufficient to cover mortgage loan
granted and loan interests receivable.

Environmental Policies

We are attentive to consumption of natural resources and reduction of
pollution during the course of managing our businesses. It is our goal
to minimise our environmental impacts through recycling of materials,
encouragement of resources savings and reduction of wastes. The Group
is committed to ensure our compliance with relevant environmental
protection laws and regulations. We also require our business partners to
comply with relevant environmental protection laws and regulations. For
further details on performance of the Group on environmental aspects
during the Year, please refer to our Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 37 to 54.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Group requires operations of the Company and its subsidiaries to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations in the territories in which
we operate. During the Year, the Board was not informed of any events
relating to violation of laws and regulations.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group has in place remuneration policies to ensure provision of
adequate rewards to employees with recognised experience of the
assigned roles and duties. The Group also provides other benefits
including bonuses, mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance
scheme and participation to share option scheme.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good relationship with our
customers. We have in place a mechanism to keep track on customers’
feedback and identify areas for improvement. Customer’s complaints
once acknowledged and reported will be dealt with timely, fairly and
diligently.
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To ensure efficient delivery of quality products and services to our
customers, the Group recognises the importance of maintaining close
and long-term relationship with suppliers. The Group will ensure fairness
when conducting procurement activities and a consistent balance on
qualities of products and services against value-for-money.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the audited financial
statement pages 80 to 187.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Dividend Policy

The Board may from time to time propose the payment of a dividend,
if any, with respect to the shares of the Company listed on the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the following dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”).
Subject to the relevant laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws, dividend may
be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or period as:

(i) interim dividend;
(i) final dividend;
(iii) special dividend; and

(iv) any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

Any final dividend proposed by the Board for any financial year shall be
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company.
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The declaration of a dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board,
which will take into account the following factors, in no particular order of
importance, when considering the payment of a dividend:

(a) the financial results of the Group;

(b) the cash flow situation and future cash requirements of the Group;

(@] the general business conditions and strategies of the Group;

(d) the future capital expenditure or debt settlement requirements of

the Group;
(e) future operations and earnings of the Group;
6] the taxation consideration;

(9) the statutory and regulatory restrictions; and
(h) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

Given the fluctuating nature of earnings or loss of the Group, the
Board does not recommend setting a target dividend payout ratio, or
maintaining a consistent dividend payment over time. There can be no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific
period.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate is set out on page 188. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options
during the Year are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF

LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are
set out in note 44 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the Year, the Company did not make any charitable contributions
(2020: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 15% of the total sales for the Year, sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 4%. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 38%
of the total purchases for the Year, purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 10% of the total purchases
for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's
five largest customers or suppliers disclosed above.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Xue Jian (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

The Directors, save and except for the Chairman (if any), are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-
laws.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13 to 14 of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting had a service contract which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

Subject to shareholders” approval at annual general meetings authorising
the Board, remuneration of the Directors are determined by the Board
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provides that the Directors for the time being acting in
relation to any of the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done. The Company
has arranged for insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities to
provide appropriate cover for legal actions brought against its Directors
and officers arising out of corporate activities of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director or any entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party subsisting during the Year or at the end of the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
The Group entered into or maintained following management contracts
for its Hotel during the Year.

Paris Marriott Hotel

The Group maintained a management agreement (dated 16 June 1995),
as amended from time to time (the “Marriott Agreement”) in relation to
management of Paris Marriott Hotel, with Marriott Hotels Manager France
SAS (“Marriott”). The Marriott Agreement shall continue for thirty years
after 1 January 2000. Marriott has option to renew the Marriott Agreement
on the same terms and conditions for each of three successive periods of
ten years.

The Group signed a hotel asset management services contract with
Jones Lang LaSalle Hotels & Hospitality Group in relation to the Paris
Marriott Hotel on 2 September 2019. The contract period commenced on
1 November 2019 and will expire on 31 October 2022.

No Director had interests in the above contracts.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The interests and short positions of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Long positions — The following represents shares to be allotted
and issued upon exercise of share options granted to the relevant
Director
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Number of
underlying
Name of Directors Capacity shares
EEHA g1 HERGHE
Mr. Xue Jian Beneficial owner 127,780,000
EEfR EmfEA A
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen Beneficial owner 10,000,000
EAKELAE EmEAA
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive has an BrEXPHIEEZEEIN  SEERFTETHRAER

interest or a short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section titled “Directors’ and chief executive's
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above and in the section titled “Share option scheme” below, at no
time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Further details of the
Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the audited financial statements.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s listed securities.

PERSONS HOLDING 5% OR MORE INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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EXRER
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Long Position Ha
Number of Percentage of
ordinary issued share
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held capital
iEss HE T
BRREE BB 14 EER#E BRAEBFDL
Mr. Du Shuang Hua ' Interest of controlled corporation 708,000,000 5.54%
MEEE S A R HEE 2 s
Happy Sino International Limited ' Beneficial interest 708,000,000 5.54%
BEmfgn
Mr. Zhang He Yi' Beneficial interest 1,400,000,000 10.96%
SRAIZE LA BEmgmn
Ms. Lu Xiaomei 2 Interest of controlled corporation 753,190,000 5.89%
BRI A1 REHER 2 R
Sincere Profit Group Limited ? Beneficial interest 753,190,000 5.89%
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Number of Percentage of
ordinary issued share
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held capital
iEss HE®T
BRERHB g4 ZRERHE BRABDL
Ga Leung Investment Company Limited 3 Beneficial Interest 1,866,666,666 14.61%
EREREARAAP EamtEn
Mr. Sun Yong Feng ? Interest on controlled corporation 1,866,666,666 14.61%
TROKIE S A4S RiEHERE R
Beneficial interest 133,000,000 1.04%
BatEs
Ms. Meng Ya * Interest of spouse 1,999,666,666 15.65%
mAE L B R
Mr. Hu Yishi Beneficial interest 1,300,000,000 10.17%
HAR T e A4 Bt

Mr. Du Shuang Hua and Mr. Zhang He Yi beneficially owns 85% and 15%
interest respectively in the issued share capital of Happy Sino International
Limited. Mr. Du Shuang Hua is deemed to be interested in the 708,000,000
shares held by Happy Sino International Limited under the provisions of
the SFO.

Ms. Lu Xiaomei beneficially owns 100% interest in the issued share capital
of Sincere Profit Group Limited. Ms. Lu Xiaomei is deemed to be interested
in the 753,190,000 shares held by Sincere Profit Group Limited under the
provisions of the SFO.

Mr. Sun Yong Feng beneficially owns 100% interest in the issued capital
of Ga Leung Investment Company Limited. Mr. Sun Yong Feng is deemed
to be interested in the 1,866,666,666 shares held by Ga Leung Investment
Company Limited under the provisions of the SFO.

Ms. Meng Ya is the spouse of Mr. Sun Yong Feng. Ms. Meng Ya is deemed
to be interested in the 1,999,666,666 shares in which Mr. Sun Yong Feng is
interested.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person, other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests
or short positions are set out in the section titled “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” above, had any interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Particulars of the Company'’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 15 to 36 of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company did not have any connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions which were subject to
the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules. The related party
transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the audited financial statements
did not fall under the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions in the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that
the Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at the
date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period
are set out in note 43 to the audited financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Emolument policy on the remuneration of the Directors and the
employees of the Group is reviewed periodically and determined by
reference to market terms, the Group’s performance and individual
qualifications and performance. The Company has adopted the Scheme
as an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
Scheme are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young (“EY”). EY
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of EY as auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Law Wing Chi, Stephen
28 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
BUZBMERESE

Ernst & Young BRETEIETSER Tel B5A: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place  H##I#IBREEITIS.  Fax(FH: +852 2868 4432
979 King’s Road Krti—REE2718 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY:

To the shareholders of Kai Yuan Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kai Yuan
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 80 to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

M ETNATEEFERETSA

Impairment assessment of the hotel property located in France (“French hotel property”)

ROZB 2B E Y (DEBEEYFE ) .2 B

The Group had the French hotel property with a carrying
amount of HK$2,432 million, representing 65% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2021. As the carrying
amount of the Group's net assets was higher than the Group’s
market capitalisation, the Group involved external experts
to perform an impairment assessment on the French hotel
property based on an income approach to estimate the fair
value less costs of disposal. This matter was significant to our
audit because the balance of the French hotel property was
material to the consolidated financial statements. Further, the
assessment process was complex and involved significant
judgements.
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Related disclosures about the impairment of non-financial
assets are included in note 3 to the financial statements.

ERFemEEREZABRBEHNUHREMES -

74 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing
the competence, capabilities and objectivity of its external
experts and involving our valuation experts to assist us in
evaluating the methodologies used by the Group's external
experts to determine the fair value less costs of disposal as at
31 December 2021 and testing the assumptions, in particular,
the average daily rate per room, occupancy rate, discount rate,
long-term growth rate and terminal capitalisation rate.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
BARFTEEH ()

Key audit matter

BEETEE

BB ES

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNESFNAEEZRARENSE

Provision for impairment of a loan to an associate

TR THE Nl B BIER R

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a loan to an
associate of approximately HK$239 million and a provision for
impairment of the loan to the associate of HK$104 million. The
Group involved external experts to perform a credit evaluation
and assess expected credit losses of the loan. Provision was
made for lifetime expected credit losses (“ECL") on loan to
an associate, taking into consideration the recoverability
of collateral held. This matter was significant to our audit
because the balance and impairment charge of the loan were
material to the consolidated financial statements. Further, the
assessment process was complex and involved significant
judgements.
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239,000,000 7T %.104,000,00047C - BEELHINERR
HETETEENERMETEHREEEE K5t LR
Hmmr oy - SEREEHRTHERRZERNEH
EHEEBR([TAREEEE ) FHRRE - b FHRHE M
WETBEE  RESZER G IRES HHFES M
BHRREBEZ - o - FHEREFEN - RS REARAE -

Related disclosures about the provision for impairment of the
loan to the associate are included in notes 39(b) to the financial
statements.

EHRETHE AR ZER ORERE 2 BEEEH N
BHR&KMIEE39(Db) ©

Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of its external experts,
involving our valuation experts to assist us in evaluating
the methodologies used by the Group’s external experts
to determine the expected credit losses of the loan to an
associate and the recoverable amount of collateral as at 31
December 2021, and testing the assumptions and estimations
used in the valuation. For collateral held, we inspected legal
agreements and supporting documentation, checked on
mortgage registration system, and obtained legal opinion to
confirm the legal right to collateral and priority of settlement.
BPNEFEFERE(HT ) A EIINEER ZHE
RE  RHIREEN  HERMNEEZKBBHE AT
B BXEE/IEERpET_T_—F+-_A=+—HZ
RHETHELFZERNABHREEER AR RO KD
TRAERZ2TE  WRASGEMBNSERE A
e AR EAmmE - RAIREERWENERX -
EERBECLEQAHIOERZER - UWERE R me)ER
BN RBEEEE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

B ZBMRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
BARETEH(4)

Key audit matter

BEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB NAEEZRARENSE

Fair value of the investment in convertible bonds

HERESFKREZ N FE

The Group had an investment with a carrying amount of HK$97
million in convertible bonds designated at fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 December 2021. The Group involved
external experts to assess the fair value of the investment in
convertible bonds using valuation techniques. This matter was
significant to our audit because the balance of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss was material to the
consolidated financial statements. Further, the assessment
process was complex and involved significant judgements.
EEBMR - —F+-A=t—BETRATHEIAR
22 AR ESRA 2 REE 59700000087 © B
B2 HINEEFRRAGERMAEIRRESFKREZ AT
B WEEHRMNEZBEE - REARRAFEFAR
RZERMEBELEREEEUBRRBEE - o - 7
R - B RERHE -

Related disclosures about the assessment of the fair value
of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
included in notes 3, 21 and 41 to the financial statements.
ERTERATET A AEmceMEERATECHBERE
BB AKRIFES ~ 21 %41 -

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL

REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us

after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.
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Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of its external experts
and involving our valuation experts to assist us in evaluating
the methodologies used by the Group’s external experts to
determine the fair value of the investment in convertible
bonds as at 31 December 2021 and testing the assumptions,
in particular, time to expiration, risk free rate, share price,
expected volatility, discount rates and others.
BPNBARFEE(HPEE)FHINBEER ZEEE
B O REEE  TLEHBEMNEEZERBBEMFT
B EEBINEERMET _T_—F+-A=+—HBZ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT (CONTINUED)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

BB ES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
BUZBEMERESE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

BB ETH RS M WMRARIEN

BfEE)

EERBFBSKIENRE  BTERFLZRR
BBBETTEAETHE - LEEEERER
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud Rt TZ A B 05 2 B2 3R o SRR PRl 7] B PO HAEE
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, Sl EEER M ol #E - (HIRIEFESTEE SRR (B XF 5k
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions EAEBR) e EFERERESESVHERE
FREH BV BATE - RI BRIt & H 4R
RERX o

that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

ERBEBETERETETNERED - &
PETREXEALE  YRSEERRELEE -
BN E

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

M AE 2
melEmk

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2021 2020
=B -F —ECFREF
Notes HKS’000 HKS$000
it FETT FET
REVENUE &y 5 93,934 37,770
Cost of sales SHERAR (138,254) (103,008)
Gross loss &S (44,320) (65,238)
Other income and gains HaA Kz 5 98,449 40,950
Provision for impairment of a loan to RETHENRZERZ
an associate RERE 39(b) (103,641) =
Other expenses HEMAx 6 (17,965) (333,837)
Administrative expenses THRAX (31,978) (33,979)
Finance costs BB A 7 (44,884) (43,425)
Share of loss of an associate it l/NE o E = (25,532) (6,621)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRI AR 1B 8 (169,871) (442,150)
Income tax credit FEHiER 1 5,508 109,276
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FANEE (164,363) (332,874)
Attributable to: AT
Owners of the Company ZANIE 2SN (164,363) (332,874)
(164,363) (332,874)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARREBEREE ARG
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BRER
THE COMPANY 13
Basic and diluted BEARAREE
— For loss for the year —-REANEBEBEME HK(1.29) cents  HK(2.60) cents

AL

Al
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SLeEZEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HIFE
2021 2020
—B-—F —TFF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Bfat FET FEIT
(Restated,
note 45)
(=75 -
Bt 5E45)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FAER (164,363) (332,874)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hip2EEA(EE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REZBEAIBEEFRDEE
that may be reclassified to profit or BRiXEME2HE
loss in subsequent periods: WA (E518)
Cash flow hedges: WETEE M
Effective portion of changes in fair value FREAZHHIA
of hedging instruments arising during N EES 2
the year “/ﬁ‘ iﬁzill 25 6,852 (7,699)
Reclassification adjustments for loss FREFEEmR
included in the consolidated statement EETEZE?FE’\*EJT%%
of profit or loss 25 3,067 2,969
Income tax effect FrisHiss & 29 (2,480) 1,182
7,439 (3,548)
Exchange differences: MEH ZRE
Exchange differences on translation of MEIBINETEFIE S 2
foreign operations PE N =58 (71,926) 114,987
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income REZHMERIEEF DA
that may be reclassified to profit or loss in EEmRZEMEE
subsequent periods (B18) WA F8E (64,487) 111,439
Other comprehensive income that will notbe REZ R~ € EHH LA
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EEmR A AMEE
periods: WA -
Actuarial reserve relating to employee EE SR FERE M S B EE
benefits, net of tax 2 (BEMBREIER) 149 (200)
Restoration to original cost for the investment E &K BEHE AR 2
subsequently becoming an associate B B1EE RN A - 10,637
Net other comprehensive income that will not A H éﬁﬁ BEN=ER Ik
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent ZEEz&xZ HMthEHE
periods WA F 58 149 10,437
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR “ERE M2 E (E18), WA
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B HNERAEIA) (64,338) 121,876
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR  4F Pu2 I 1B 4848 (228,701) (210,998)
Attributable to: AT RS -
Owners of the Company RARIHEA A (228,701) (210,998)
(228,701) (210,998)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR RBR

As at 31 December 2021
RZZE-Z—F+=-R=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —EToFF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
et FET FET
(Restated,
note 45)
(&3
Hi3E45)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEMENEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 14 2,470,596 2,686,692
Right-of-use assets BREEE 15 543 2,045
Intangible assets B EE 16 186 224
Investment in an associate RELERRIZRE 17 = 33,386
Financial assets at fair value through AT EABRZ
profit or loss TRVEE 21 96,714 106,333
Loan to an associate REFEE AR ZER 39(b) 87,235 127,008
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMIA 25 387 =
Deferred tax assets BT IEBEE 29 42,865 40,827
Total non-current assets EMEEELE 2,698,526 2,996,515
CURRENT ASSETS MEBNEE
Inventories g 18 576 686
Trade receivables FEUER TR 19 4,539 =
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE - Eofth B WFRIE
other assets REAMEE 20 52,466 40,623
Loan to an associate RETFHMERRZER 39(b) 48,108 93,928
Pledged deposits BT R 22 39,276 42,544
Cash and cash equivalents BENBEESEED 22 871,732 892,871
Total current assets mEBEERE 1,016,697 1,070,652
Total assets BEE 3,715,223 4,067,167
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade payables FERTRR R 23 1,354 3,084
Other payables and accruals Eab N FRIANMETBR 24 58,339 49,037
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMIA 25 516 9,859
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 481 1,749
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEIRTEE 27 - 1,625,806
Tax payable e # I8 3,502 =
Total current liabilities mENBERRE 64,192 1,689,535
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) mENEE,/(BE)FE 952,505 (618,883)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRDAS 3,651,031 2,377,632
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

aRE SRR R

As at 31 December 2021
RZEZ—F+=A=+—H

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ETHF

Notes HK$’000 HKS$000

HaF FET FET

(Restated,

note 45)

(&LE5 -

BisE45)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRDEE 3,651,031 2,377,632
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES E e E=Ri

Other long term payables HAth = BAME /I8 28 1,635 2,857

Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHESRITEE 27 1,516,793 -

Lease liabilities HEAE 26 = 406

Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIEBE 29 148,868 162,528

Total non-current liabilities FERBEELTE 1,667,296 165,791

Net assets BEFE 1,983,735 2,211,841

EQUITY s

Share capital [N 30 1,277,888 1,277,888

Reserves ER 32 705,847 933,953

Total equity Emiasa 1,983,735 2,211,841

Approved on behalf of the board of directors: KREFSHHE
Xue Jian Law Wing Chi, Stephen
[ ;K&
Director Director
S S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

M AHE 2L =
MEREREER
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at fair
value through
other
comprehensive Retained
Cashflow  income*  Exchange profits/
Share hedge EATEHA fluctuation (accumulated
Share Share  option Retirement reserve* EHIZEUA  reserve*  losses)* Total
apital  premium  reservet  resevet  BEHE 28HEEZ  ERRE REEN/  equiy
Bx  ROEE BRERE EXeEE  HWEE LTEER i (BER) BREE
HKS'000 HKks'000 HKks'ooo HKS000 HKS 000 HKks'000 HKkSooo HKs'oo0 HKS 000
AT AL A7 FAT AT AL T T T
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-TE-F-f 1277888 1027,637 2158 745 (4,006) (10637) (151,825) 10879 2422839
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = - 3 (3387
Other comprehensive los for the year: ERihiEBE:
Cash low hedges, net o tax RenEd
(EMBHE) > e s s (3549) e s - B4
Bichange differences on tranglation BERIEREE,
of foreign operations EizE - - - - - - 114,987 - T
Actuarialreserve relating to HESRAABNGE
employee benefits, net of tax Eg (BNRHE) = = = (200) = = = - (200)
Restoration to original cost for the equity M ERENARDT

investment at fair value through other EFAZHEERAL

comprehensive income subsequently Rk EEBZ R

becoming an associate, net of tax K(EHBRE)

(note7) (Witi) - - - - - 10637 - - 106y
Total comprehensive loss for the year EREABRLE - - - (200) (3548) 10637 114987 (332874 (210998)
At 31 December 2020 RIECEFT-R=+-B 1277888 1027637 2158 545 (7554) - (36,838) (51995 2211841
Restatement (note 1) &5 it22) - - - - - - - 595 595
Restated balance at January 1, 021 BEHR-5--F

—A-R7&s 1,277,888 1,027,637 2,158 545 (7,554) - (36,838) (51,400) 2,212,436
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (164363) (164363)
Other comprehensive los for th year EREfEEEE:
Cash low hedges, net o tax RenEin
(BHRHE) - - - - 7439 - - S
Exchange differences on translation BERERAEE,
of foreign operations EiZE - - - - - - (1926 - (11926
Actuaral reserve relting to EESRTIRENEE

employee benefts, net of tax B (BIRHEE) - - - 149 - - = 5 149
Total comprehensive loss or the year EREEERLE - - - 149 7439 - (192)  (164363) (228,701)
At31 December 2021 REEC-FTCAZT-H 1277888 1,027,637 2,158 694 (115) - (108,764)  (215763) 1,983,735

e These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of & HWERERBRGATBERIBERAZ

HK$705,847,000 (2020: HK$933,953,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

4RA FEE 7058470008 T( T T4
933,953,000/ 7T ) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-_—F+-A=+—ALtFE

2021 2020
= —ETEF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
HtaE FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REKEEBZHEERE
Loss before tax: R AIEE (169,871) (442,150)
Adjustments for: IEPE AT A% -
Finance costs BB A 44,884 43,425
Share of loss of an associate iy o g 25,532 6,621
Interest income from a loan to an associate REFHEQRZERZ
B A 5 (12,085) (8,743)
Investment income from financial assets BATEGFAER L
at fair value through profit or loss REEIREKRA (7,828) =
Change in fair value of an investment in SR ESEREZ
convertible bonds NEEES 5 9,619 (8,533)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BiE KB E R EEE 14 - 333,609
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BENMRETE 14 38,186 35,032
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 15 1,625 1,814
Amortisation of intangible assets B B 16 32 95
Provision for impairment of an investment in REENRZREZ
an associate VEREREL] 17 8,302 -
Provision for loan to an associate B & A BRI AR 39(b) 103,641 =
42,037 (38,830)
Decrease in inventories FERY 110 271
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEUBRE R (18 0) /R (4,539) 12,798
Decrease in loans receivable JRE Ui & R > = 35,000
Increase in prepayments, other receivablesand ~ TETRIE - b ZIE K
other assets Hip&EELN (11,843) (6,351)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERBRZKCRD) /18 m (1,730) 465
(Increase)/decrease in other payables Hin e FIE R ERTE A
and accruals (&), m 16,201 (11,235)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations LEMRE/(FA)RE 40,236 (7,882)
France profit tax refunded REUEBF G = 1,097
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNBEBNER - (1,222)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) eEEBEE/(FTA)
operating activities HeneE# 8 40,236 (8,007)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
Note HKS’000 HKS$000
HtaE FET FEIT
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) SEE TR, (FrE)
operating activities ReEmEFH 40,236 (8,007)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERELH RERE
Purchases of items of property, BEWE  BELMEEER
plant and equipment (16,922) (6,754)
Acquisition of an associate -t dlNG - (13,676)
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BERAFEFAERZ
through profit or loss CRIEE - (97,800)
Decrease/(increase) in long-term prepayments RPEMFTERD,/(3800) - 5,444
Interest received BUHE 7,828 =
Loan to an associate RETHEARZER - (198,335)
Net cash flows used in investing activities RETBFMARSREFE (9,094) (311,121
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REREEB HERE
Decrease/(increase) in pledged time deposits BT BER
md/ () 99 (119)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRAKSEHD (1,797) (1,791)
Interest paid BRFLE (38,247) (36,454)
Net cash flows used in financing activities A EEEESRE R (39,945) (38,364)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND Re kB eSHEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS AR (8,803) (357,492)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FONReNREEEY 892,871 1,237,219
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MEREE)  HEFHE (12,336) 13,144
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR FRESNESZEY 22 871,732 892,871
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARREEER
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted RNARTIRBEESTMAN 2 EER %
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the EREMERRA  EROAREBHER
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The SFABRAR(THERZFT]) o AR
address of the registered office of the Company is Victoria Place, )5 fift 9 == R Hh Ak A Victoria Place, Sth
5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and the Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
principal place of business is located at 28th Floor, Chinachem Bermuda * EE& X B AN EEE
Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. FETITE 1785 E M 40 B 5281 o
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, and RATFEEBE AL EER EETH
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in hotel operation and BRARTENERELENGIE R -
money lending.
Information about subsidiaries NG =g
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: AKABIHEBARFEBENT ¢
Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share/registered
or registration/ Issued ordinary/ capital attributable
place of operations registered to the Company
Form of BRI ATAE share capital ARRES
Name of subsidiary legal entity B min BRITLER/ BRITRH, Principal activities
WEARER EERERA RS- pobs fRA aMEAFAL TEEHR
Direct% Indirect %
EE% %
Crown Value Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$80,984,251 100 - Investment holding
("Crown Value”)
(TCrown Valuel) A B/ BE 80984251787 REER
Splendid Holdings Sar.l. Corporation Luxembourg/Luxembourg EUR20,000 - 100 Investment holding
A ERE/ERE 200008X % REER
MCE OpCo HoldCo Corporation France/France EUR15,973,155 = 100 Investment holding
NG Ve WG 15,973,155 & B
MCE OpCo Corporation France/France EUR17,835,915 - 100 Hotel operation
AL =B/ 5B 1783591580 & BERE
Splendid PropCo Corporation France/France EUR44,000,010 - 100 Owner of a hotel
property
AL =B/ 5B 44,000,010BX EENERAA
Global Strategy International ~ Corporation British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong
ERERERERARD A7 EBARRHEE/ B 1005 7T REER
Kai Yuan Capital Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Money lending
FRREBRAR A7 BiE /B 10,0007 7T RMEXH
Star Wonder Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
ERBRAR A7 BE/BA 18T REER
Ever Info Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
A7 RBERREE/ BB 100X 7 REER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

RAREEER (5)

R RER ()
AREMBAAFEDT : ()

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share/registered
or registration/ Issued ordinary/ capital attributable
place of operations registered to the Company
Form of FEMRILS share capital b NG 3
Name of subsidiary legal entity BRames/ BRTEER/ ERTRG/ Principal activities
WEARER EEERRN gk EAEN aMEAFAL TEEH
Direct% Indirect %
E#% %
Universal Yield Investments ~ Corporation British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited © Hong Kong
EFREBRARD e RBERREE/BE [EZ REZR
Deluxe (China) Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
wx(PE)BERAT A Bt/ BE 18T REZR
Shanghai Top Star Advanced ~ Wholly-owned The PRC/Mainland China US$35,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Materials Co., Limited foreign enterprise
DEREERHMH NEBERE e/ E AR 35,000,000% 7T REER
ER AR
Ever Profit Management Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 - Service provision
Limited
KHEBERAR NG BE/BR 1,000,000 7T RALRE
Charter Best Investments Corporation British Virgin Islands/Hong Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited Kong
A LREBRES/BE [EZ REER
Oriental Institute of Science  Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Research and
Limited development
NG BB/ BB 100757T g
Full Kingdom Limited Corporation British Virgin Islands/Hong US$100 100 - Investment holding
Kong
e RBERREE/BE 100E7T REZR
New York Limited Corporation Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment holding
NG BB/ B 10077T REER
0 No audited financial statements have been prepared for (i) HEERTERGEBEE_T-_—F

TZA=+—BLEFEZEREZY
BHmk  REAR/RBREEMAT
ZERVERE 2 ERED SRR 2R
E o RENREMEERT RN Z
PR ©

these entities for the year ended 31 December 2021 as these
entities were not subject to any statutory audit requirement
under relevant rules and regulations in their jurisdictions of
incorporation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for derivative financial instruments and an equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers

all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(@] the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The application of the revised HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Groups’' consolidated financial position
and performance for the current and prior years.

Decision on Attributing Benefit to Periods of Service

In April 2021, the IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRS 1C")
provided clarifications on how to determine the periods to which
retirement benefit is attributed for some defined benefit plans.
For pension plans whose rights depend on the seniority of the
employee on retirement date and are capped after a certain
number of years of seniority, the entity’s obligation would only
raise from the last years of service that provide rights to the
employee (and not over the full period of service within the
company). The application of those new provisions resulted in a
HK$595,000 increase in equity as at 1 January, 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’®
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current®*
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use'
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract'
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41"

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

N As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

& As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

While the adoption of some of the new and revised HKFRSs may
result in changes in accounting policies, none of these HKFRSs is
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment
in the associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the associate is included
as part of the Group's investment in an associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-T——

2.4

FH-A=+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and an
equity investment at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
Level T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and non-current assets/a
disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group, and the sponsoring
employers of the post-employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2.4

E_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over the estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised basis over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The useful life of an intangible asset is shown as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHHEREBE®)

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:
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Lease terms

pizh:
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Buildings BF 2-3
Motor vehicle B 2-3
Office equipment FENES 3-4

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for termination of
a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to all its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option) and leases of items that are considered to be of
low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income and
gains in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition”
below.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of
part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains
are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2.4

E_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 =

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage2 -

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables, derivative financial instruments, lease liabilities and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest
rate swaps, to hedge its interest rate risk. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when
the hedged item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes

in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2.4

E_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction, or a foreign
currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment; or

hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged
and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the
analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the
hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for
hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness
requirements:

There is “an economic relationship” between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument.

The effect of credit risk does not "dominate the value
changes” that result from that economic relationship.

The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same
as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge
that quantity of hedged item.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Hedges which meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge
accounting are accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The
cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative
gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the cumulative
change in fair value of the hedged item.

The amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are
accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged
transaction. If the hedged transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial item, the amount accumulated in
equity is removed from the separate component of equity and
included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the hedged
asset or liability. This is not a reclassification adjustment and will
not be recognised in other comprehensive income for the period.
This also applies where the hedged forecast transaction of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability subsequently becomes a
firm commitment to which fair value hedge accounting is applied.

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect the statement of profit
or loss.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount
that has been accumulated in other comprehensive income
must remain in accumulated other comprehensive income
if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur.
Otherwise, the amount will be immediately reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. After
the discontinuation, once the hedged cash flow occurs, any
amount remaining in accumulated other comprehensive income
is accounted for depending on the nature of the underlying
transaction as described above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting)
for a period beyond 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the
host contract are classified consistently with the cash
flows of the host contract.

Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue recognition for the hotel operation of the Group is
subject to HKFRS 15, including rendering of accommodation
services, catering services, travel agency services and laundry
services, each deemed as a separate performance obligation.
Such performance obligation is satisfied over time as the service
is rendered and revenue is recognised accordingly. Payment is
generally due within 30 days upon completion of the service.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2.4

E_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's subsidiaries which operate in France have obligations
to pay benefits to eligible employees either at the end of their
employment or during their retirement. The Group’s main defined
benefit plans provide indemnities payable to employees on
retirement or when they leave the Group.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plans (continued)

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit pension
plan, which is covered by provisions recorded in the financial
statements. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from a defined benefit pension
plan, comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

(i) the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
(i) the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related
costs

Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the defined
benefit liability. The Group recognises the following changes in
the net defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

(i) service costs comprising current service costs, past service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements

(ii) interest expense or income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement of translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the
exceptions of monetary items that are designated as part of the
hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount
is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an
associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into the presentation
currency at the exchange rates that approximate to those
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year of the cash flows.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the commercial property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of these properties which are leased out and accounts
for the contracts as operating leases.

1 22 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

2.4

FESHBERBE®)

fhEs ()
HESZEREZENEMEEEA
R YREL KB REER - BE
BN BZREFINEBEH
ZHMEEBATINBERER

R EEINEBmMEENEMEHER
WEFMSEEEABZREABZAYF
BEREERRSIEGENEERAR
BRIE - WIRIEEIRE R]E -

BERBRERERME - PEAER
BIMBRRZAERERFARS
B Z I IgE R B ST

BEREFHE RS
ERBEASEMBEHRE  BEEAR
R A B - At RBR - MERH

B A REBERAEFEMEZHRK
mo A% BEELEABESHRUNERE
MEELIABERE - A - 1tF
BRIEFZ I ETHAEEERE
ARBEHIFEEERABZED
EELBEARFE -

#I R
EREERAAKRESTHEN @ &
TR RAGET Z HE 5 - TR 1R
TIHMBRROCERSEBURZE
REBEZHE

YWEBEE S — AEEERLHEA
AEBEREREMEEARILEA
MERE - REVBABLTHZHRR
R B 2 5d (1A 7E B3 B R RS AR
MEZEESwIIEZHD  A&E
HEFRRREITENARPEZBK
Mo RFE) - AEBEEEEFRE Lt
MM E BN 28 RE D R R
kO IR EBEEOARAKER
£ .



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise
a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is
an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. Useful lives are
determined based on management’s past experience with similar
assets and estimated changes in technologies. If the estimated
useful lives changed significantly, adjustment of depreciation will
be provided in the future year. The carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$2,470,596,000 (2020: approximately HK$2,686,692,000). More
details are given in note 14.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
Group involved external experts to perform an impairment
assessment on the French hotel property with a carrying
amount of HK$2,432,317,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$2,647,551,000) based on an income approach to estimate
its fair value less costs of disposal. The assessment is based
on key assumptions, such as the average daily rate per room,
occupancy rate, discount rate, long-term growth rate and terminal
capitalisation rate. Further details are contained in note 14 to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
estimation is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was HK$45,602,000
(2020: HK$42,878,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at
1 December 2021 was HK$252,245,000 (2020: HK$239,925,000).
Further details are contained in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The fair values of the Group's investment in convertible bonds
are calculated using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
are certified by an independent qualified valuer before being
implemented for valuation and are calibrated to ensure that
outputs reflect market conditions. Valuation models established
by the valuer make the maximum use of market inputs and rely as
little as possible on the Group's specific data. The model involves
estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate, share price, share
price volatility, discount rates and others. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amount of the Group's investment in convertible
bonds was HK$96,714,000 (2020: HK$106,333,000). Further details
are contained in note 41 to the financial statements.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 represent management’s
best estimate of losses incurred at the reporting date under ECL
models.

The measurement of the ECL involves significant management
judgements and assumptions, primarily including the selection
of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters, criteria for determining whether or
not there was a significant increase in credit risk or a default was
incurred, economic indicators for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and weightings,
management consideration due to significant uncertain factors
not covered in the models and the estimated future cash flow. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s loan to an associate is
disclosed in note 39(b) to the financial statements.

Impairment of an investment in an associate

The Group assesses annually if its investment in an associate
suffers any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36. The
assessment requires an estimation of future cash flows,
including expected dividends, from the assets and the selection
of appropriate discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would affect the
estimation of impairment loss and cause in the adjustments of
their carrying amounts. Further details are contained in note 17 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two reportable

operating segments (2020: two) as follows:

(a) the hotel operation segment engaged in the operation of

the hotel business in France; and

(b) the money lending segment engaged in providing

mortgage loans in Hong Kong.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, other interest income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, interest income from loan to an associate,
fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, share of loss of an associate and corporate expenses are

excluded from such measurement.

An analysis for the Group’s revenue is as follows:

4. REDHEHR
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Hotel Money
Year ended 31 December 2021 operation lending Total
BE-_Z-_—+-A=1+—HLFE G R MEEK st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

Segment revenue (note 5) 7 EB AR (BrEES)
Sales to external customers AN B P EE 93,934 - 93,934
Segment results DEBEEE (29,055) (627) (29,682)
Reconciliation: HE -
Bank interest income IRITFBWA 3,208
Interest income from financial BAFESTAEBRZ

assets at fair vale through S RVEE 2 HBWA

profit or loss 7,828
Interest income from a loan to an 32 FHE AT

associate Bz M BHA 12,085
Fair value loss on financial BRAFEFAREBREZ

assets at fair value through SREEZAFE

profit or loss g (9,619)
Provision for impairment of RETHERTZER

a loan to an associate ZRERE (103,641)
Share of loss of an associate FEAGHS & A ) 2 518 (25,532)
Provision for impairment of REERBZIREZ

an investment in an associate SE RS (8,302)
Corporate and other unallocated AT R E i KD A2

expenses (16,216)
Loss before tax BritATE 1B (169,871)

1 26 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REHTERE)

Hotel Money
Year ended 31 December 2020 operation lending Total
BE-_T-TF+_A=1t—HILFE B JE 4 R E st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$000
FET FET FET
Segment revenue (note 5) 7Bk aE (HEES)
Sales to external customers AINERE F ey & 36,380 890 37,770
Segment results DERELE (445117) (97) (445,214)
Reconciliation: HER -
Bank interest income HRITH S A 10,586
Interest income from a loan to bl /N g
an associate Bz BWA 8,743
Fair value gains on financial BRATETAEBRZ
assets at fair value through TRMEEY
profit or loss A EKE 8,533
Share of loss of an associate Vil ANl oF = (6,621)
Corporate and other DRI REM KRS B
unallocated expenses (18,177)
Loss before tax MrAR Bl E 1R (442,150)
Geographical information h @ & K
(@) Revenue from external customers (a) KEIEBEP < W
2021 2020
—E=-— —ECEF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHETT FET
France VN 93,934 36,880
Hong Kong a5 - 890
93,934 37,770

The revenue information above is based on the locations

of the customers.

btz W EmERTIRBEE P

EHED -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)
(b) Non-current assets

4. REFBER@W
EER(E)
(b) ERBEE

2021 2020

—E-—F TR CTF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FETT FET

France e 2,433,053 2,649,827
Mainland China Fp B K e 38,251 72,489
Hong Kong a5 21 31
2,471,325 2,722,347

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments

and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue from transactions with a single customer accounted
for 10% or more of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31

December 2021 and 2020.

1 28 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

bR ZIERBEEEMTIRE
BEMGEME D X TEES
BMTAMEERABE -

FEEFZER
REBEEZT - —FRZZF_ZTF+=
A=+—HILFE  UEHEE—KPF
ETZR Gz Wb AN EE =B %R
10%E A | o



5.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing

operations is as follows:

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

Wi - Hal AR WS
%G%«%%ﬁ%zuﬁé ~ H AU A Rk
DTN

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FEIT FET
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEFE&HWEH 93,934 36,880
Revenue from other sources kB H ARz W
Interest income HMEWA - 890
93,934 37,770
Other income Hab A
Gross rental income from a property MEKLEHEE
operating lease: HE WAL
Fixed lease payments Bl f}fk 1,806 1,688
Investment income from financial assets WA EFFABTZZ
at fair value through profit or loss SEEEZIRERA 7,828 -
Interest income from a loan to an associate 2 THE AT ZER Y
FEHA 12,085 8,743
Government grants BT Bh 70,511 1,756
Bank interest income RITH B YA 3,208 10,586
95,438 22,773
Gains g
Gain on financial assets at fair value BAFTEFABR 2
through profit or loss (note 21) TREE W (Hit21) - 8,533
Insurance indemnity REGTRE 3,011 9,227
Others Hih - 417
3,011 18,177
98,449 40,950

BMEERARAT | 2021 £ 129



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. W HW AR KR @)
The disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with INEE .Z%)E SIS -
customers is as follows:

2021 2020
=B —-F —E-FF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET FET
Type of services R MA
Rendering of accommodation services R ERS 76,006 27,925
Rendering of catering services IRHERIRTE 13,409 6,934
Rendering of travel agency services RAIRTTAL AR TS 3,856 1,815
Rendering of laundry services RHERARTE 663 206
Total revenue from contracts with customers B & #4258 93,934 36,880
Geographical market hE TS
France and total revenue from contracts FEEEBRFPAELINESEEE
with customers 93,934 36,880
Timing of revenue recognition U= RS
Services transferred over time and total RIS — BRI E% &
revenue from contracts with customers BEFRAHMERE 93,934 36,880
Total revenue from contracts with customers can be directly BEAEHNEBEE R B4R 2
reconciled to the segment revenue of hotel operation disclosed in G D B IR o
note 4.
6. OTHER EXPENSES 6. Hfifx
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
HteE FHET FEIT

Impairment loss of property, plant #12 &= M & & REEE

and equipment 14 = 333,609
Fair value loss on financial assets XA F{EFF ABRZ 2Bl

at fair value through profit or BEZANFEEER

loss 21 9,619 -

Provision for impairment of an REERRZ®/EZ
investment in an associate B 17 8,302 =
Foreign exchange losses i S EE 44 228
17,965 333,837
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-_—F+-A=+—ALtFE

FINANCE COSTS 7. ®ERK
2021 2020
—E—— —ZT-FF
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Hret FAET FHEIT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFE 41,743 40,285
Fair value losses, net: N EEEFE
Cash flow hedges (transfer from REmEE P (A
other comprehensive income) HEm2mEmEA) 3,067 2,969
Interest on lease liabilities MEBENE 26 67 152
Interest on a defined benefit plan FERMETEIFE 28 7 19
44,884 43,425
LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. KRBIAIEE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBBBBTERBII&HEGR,(GTA)
LATRIER -
2021 2020
—BC--f —TCTF
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
Hist FET FEr
Cost of hotel operation B JE A R AR 99,921 67,835
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BEREETE
equipment 14 38,186 35,032
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 15 1,625 1814
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEBH 16 32 95
Impairment of property, plant and M - BEREERE
equipment 14 - 333,609
Provision for impairment of an investment ~ RN R ZIRE 2
in an associate NERIERE T =] 17 8,302 -
Provision for impairment of a loan to RHFEE AT
an associate B RERE 39(b) 103,641 -
Lease payments not included in TESAAEaRETEY
the measurement of lease liabilities =XRE:N 37(b) 46 94
Auditor’s remuneration BHEME 2,323 2,231
Wages, salaries and other benefits I% - HekHMmER
(including directors’ and chief (BREESHHREE
executive’s remuneration) (note 9) TN BE) (F779) 9,087 8,483
Foreign exchange difference, net BE 5% = 6 44 228
Fair value loss/(gain), net: NFEFEER/(E)
Cash flow hedges (transfer from other RemEsih(EEe
comprehensive income) Hin2EHA) 7 3,067 2,969
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss SREE 56 9,619 (8,533)
Investment income from financial assets RATEFABRL
at fair value through profit or loss CREEIRERA 5 (7,828) =
REFHEQRAZERZ
Interest income from a loan to an associate FEWA 5 (12,085) (8,743)
Bank interest income RITFIBWA 5 (3,208) (10,586)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERFIETHAEHMH
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BEFTTRHREEE(CRIIEH)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), () 2£383(1)(a) * (b) * (O RMOIER(AT (3
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BEENRER) RN F2HHEE
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of Directors) ERFETHRABFAFMOT :

Regulation, is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Fees we 1,000 1,000
Other emoluments: H b RE -
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e R REWA S 4,290 4,290
Performance related bonuses B RIR R 2 TEAT 760 760
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIHEER 36 36
5,086 5,086
6,086 6,086
No share options were granted for the years ended 31 December REEZT-Z—FRZZF-TF+=
2021 and 2020. A=+—HLFE ERLTMAE
R HE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERIETHAEHFM#)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive directors, independent non-executive directors HITEE BIUFHITEERTE
and the chief executive: TEBAE .
Salaries,
allowance and
benefits Pension
inkind  Performance scheme
% * related bonuses contributions Total
2021 Fees BER  ERTHE BIKE  remuneration
—E--F e BYFE TEAL SHEIBR B0 Pkl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKs’000 HKs’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors:
WITEE:
Mr. Xue Jian*
i 200 2,600 500 18 3,318
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
BokERE 200 1,690 260 18 2,168
400 4,290 760 36 5,486
Independent non-executive directors:
BYIEITES
Mr. Tam Sun Wing
EHREE 200 = = - 200
Mr. Ng Ge Bun
REWESE 200 - - - 200
Mr. He Yi
BREE 200 - - - 200
600 - - - 600
1,000 4,290 760 36 6,086
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS SRk Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. ESRFIETHAEFM@®
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive directors, independent non-executive directors HITEE BUIHTESERTE
and the chief executive: (continued) THAE : (&)
Salaries,

allowance and

benefits Pension
in kind Performance scheme
¥% - related bonuses contributions Total
2020 Fees EAN R HERFEMEY BIKE  remuneration
—T-TF ok EMHE TE4T SHEIHR FrbazE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T TET FET FET FET
Executive directors:
HITES -
Mr. Xue Jian*
Bfe ot~ 200 2,600 500 18 3318
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
BokERE 200 1,690 260 18 2,168
400 4,290 760 36 5,486
Independent non-executive directors:
BAUFRTES
Mr. Tam Sun Wing
BEREE 200 - - = 200
Mr. Ng Ge Bun
REWESE 200 - - = 200
Mr. He Yi
BREE 200 = = = 200
600 - - - 600
1,000 4,290 760 36 6,086
e Mr. Xue Jian is the chief executive officer of the Company. * BB EERBRNREIITIREH -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FAMBEETNEBESTHEXREN
agreed to waive any emoluments during the Year. EEa Rz 25k -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 10. EEEEFMAL
The five highest paid individuals during the year included two Eﬁqﬁ% SEgMATBRIE_—_REE
directors (2020: two directors), details of whose emoluments are —ECTEF K ER) REZH
set out in note 9 above. Details of the emoluments for the year @Haﬁ %@EAJ:YW%I9 c FRHT =%
of the remaining three (2020: three) highest paid individuals who ZEEF ZR)MIEEARAES
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as MIEFETHRAEZSESHFMALZ
follows: FMFFBOT
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEEF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e REREWA S 2,432 2,476
Performance related bonuses A RIR R FEAT 234 234
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFTEIEER 53 53
2,719 2,763
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FANFATEE 2BRIEEETTIEE
individuals whose emoluments fell within the following bands is ETRABEESFMAT ZABNT :
as follows:

Number of employees

EEAE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFTF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000% 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001,8 7L £ 1,500,00078 7T 1 1
No share options were granted for the years ended 31 December REBE-_Z-_—FR-_ZF-_FF+=
2021 and 2020. A=+—HLLFE  UERLEME

fix i -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-T——

11.

FrZA=+—HLEFE

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The provision for PRC current income tax was based on the
statutory rate of 25% (2020: 25%) of the assessable profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China as determined in
accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of
the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, which came into effect on 1
January 2008.

The provision of French current income tax was based on the rate
of 26.5% (2020: 28%) of the estimated assessable profits arising
during the year. The tax rates in France are as follows:

For year 2021 26.5%
For year 2022 and afterwards 25%

The provision for Luxembourg’s current income tax was based
on the rate of 29.22% (2020: 29.22%) of the estimated assessable
profits arising during the year.

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended
1 December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

11.

ey
EBNEHBEFRNEESSEL A
SR R MZEHEI6%(ZE-F

F 1 16.5%) ER - HEAKEET — RN
BRAI(ERNGHEMAB T ZAE

HRERE)BRIN o E KT A B & 2,000,000
BT (ZZT =T : 2,000,000 7T) 2 &
AT 328,250 ( =T = F4F : 8.25%)
TRERFTEBIIR - T ERBSF AL
16.5%( B -T4F 1 16.5%) T R
H e HBRZERFEFZAEER
EEIEER R EAERIEA -

RIS R BB ARERF
B KB 2 P B8 1 B) B AR B8 A HROA TE
WE506( — B _FF : 25%)5tiE - B
BRE RN _FENF—A—H
ERzpBERERSTAERAEHR
BRANRPITMETE

AR REBEFRNEE MG
SRR R MR 265% ( —E T4 ¢

28%) B R B o EABBERNT ¢
—E—FE 26.5%
—E-FERMNE 25%

ERBIBAEHEBRFAEE 2
ETRERT S MR 29220 (22 =F
£ 129200 ) A o

BE_T_—FR_T_TF+_A
T —HBLEFEMSHRASY 2 EEE
DT

2021 2020
—E-—-F —_TFTF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET T
Current income tax — Mainland China BNERFT 1S B — A B K e
Charge for the year FAZH 3,113 =
Current income tax — Hong Kong BVERPRIS T — &8
Charge for the year FAZH 337 -
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR = 40
Current income tax — France BUERFRS I — A E
Under provision in prior years BAEFERETR = 5
Deferred (note 29) BIE(Ft5E29) (8,958) (109,321)
Income tax credit for the year FRAEFHER (5,508) (109,276)

1 36 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



11.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at
the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective
tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the
statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates are as follows:

11.

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

FRE® (&)
BERARARR REM B QB MER
AR ZAER R E 2R AEE
ZHBRAXBERERBREARE 2R
P2 $iR - A REA B R (BDEER
K)VEBEBEBR R ZHRWOT

2021 Mainland China Hong Kong France Luxembourg Others Total
gz- hEAE B itH ERE Ko 3t
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HKS'000 %  HK$'000 %
¥ 71 F&r & FEr 71
Loss)/profitbeforetax ~ BEAI(BE)/
il (125,665) (1,500) (43,894) 1,236 (48) (169,871)

Taxat the statutory income R FTE %

tax rate HE BT (31,416) 25.0 (248) 165  (11,632) 26,5 361 29.2 - - (42,935 253
Brpenses not deductble TR

for tax - - 1587 (1058) 2,304 (5.2) - - - - 3,891 (23)
Lower tax ateenacted by 7 & B2

local authority fEf= - - (163 110 - - - - - - (163) 0.1
Income not subject totax  EE&RUA - - (3011) 2007 - - (361 (292 - - (331) 20
Taxlosses and temporary A EARBBER

diferences not recognised  EB £ W3 (276) 2209 (1473) - - - - - - 3952 (18
Effectof different taxrate ~ FRfE 7 HE - - - - 370 (0.8) - - - - 370 (0.2)
Taxlosses utllsed from ~ EYFEENRS

previous periods HEER (214) 02 (35) 23 - - - - - - (249) 0.1
Taxchargeat the Group's  RASEERHER

effective rate REZEBER 33 (8 3T (25) (898 204 - - - - (5508 32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

11. INCOME TAX (continued) 11. BH®E)
2000 Mainland China Hong Kong France Luxembourg Others 0 Total
I L hERE (3 il ERE Efyo 3
HKS000 % HKSO00 % HKS000 % HKS000 % HKSO00 % HKS000 %
A1 FET AT T AT A1
(Loss)profitbefore tax R (&5lE) /
sl (352) 18131 (461,260) 1381 (44) (442.150)

Taxatthe statutory income - REEFEHE

fax rate SEZBRE 88) 50 2992 165 (129154) 280 404 292 - - (125846) 85
Bxpenses not deductible AR

fortax 1,665 (4702) - - 6,506 (14) - - - - 8201 (19)
Income not subject totax ~ EZEHIA - - e 390 - - (4o (92 = - (40) 17
Taxlossesand temporary ~ AEEAHEEER

diferences not recognised  EREE - -4 05 - - - - - - 09)
Efect of different taxrate~ FAHZE 2 F/& = = = - 138 29 = = = - 137 (30)
Taxlosses utilzed from  EYFE(EERRS

previous periods HEBE (1%7) 452 - - - - - - - - (1560) 04
Prioryear taxadjustment  FEFERE = = 4 02 5 = = = = = 4 =
Taxchargeat the Group's  RASEERHER

effective rate SHEZRBRX - - 4 02 (09316) 27 - - - - (l09276) 48

(i) Others represent the results of certain subsidiaries which are tax- (i) HEtMEETHBAR(RERERRE
exempted companies incorporated in Bermuda and the British BHRB RS IMK I 2 ERET
Virgin Islands. BAR))ZHE °
12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in

respect of the year (2020: Nil).

1 38 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

BERUFEBRNAFEAAMRE(Z
T_TF:E|) -

/A



13.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 13. XAFEBEZFAEAREER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY BB
The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on FREAREGESENREAAGILE
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the EEEEAEEFABERIUALFARAD
Company, and the weighted average number of 12,778,880,000 1T R 19 oA T 15 A% £112,778,880,000
(2020: 12,778,880,000) shares in issue during the year. (=BT 4 :12,778,880,0000% ) 5t
o
The calculation of the diluted loss per share amount is based on FREEEESEIIREARAE
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of ERXEEAEEFANEEITE - st&
the Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares BAER T ERMETIRE AT
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue EeRENEESMFEFRAZEFRNDE
during the year, as used in the basic loss per share calculation, TEBREE  UERBRAMEBEAEZE
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to fi&%%g TR AR AT E s E iR
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or AETBERMEERITZ E B IMEFE
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary PR ER -
shares.
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts TEREE S FR_T_TF
presented for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 in +—A=+—HIEECE2ERZ2EK
respect of a dilution as the exercise prices of the Company’s EXNBESHEELEERE  RAA
outstanding share options were higher than the average market REMBEERAABATERERE
prices for the Company’s shares during the years. TEEBHERAQARKRMD 2FHmi5
B1% -
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on: FIREREER TR T EEE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FEx FET
Loss B
Loss attributable to ordinary equity RARERERFTFAA
holders of the Company FE1G &R (164,363) (332,874)
2021 2020
—ZE=-—F —E-THF
Shares ('000) B (FiR)
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EEREEERE
shares in issue during the year used in FAB BT RARMNE
the diluted loss per share calculation SEHRRER 12,778,880 12,778,880
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-—F+-A=+—RHALFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y%  BEKRE

Hotel Leasehold Motor Office
properties Buildings  improvements vehicles equipment Total
BENE Br EENREE RE BAERE @it
HKs'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKS 000
TAr A A A A A
Cost HA

As at 31 December 2019 R-E-nE+-A=t-H 2,954,028 55,538 1826 4,009 1,208 3,016,609
Additions by 6,754 - - = = 6,754
Bchange differences ontranslation ~~ AEE4 7B £ 275375 374 4 36 13 2948
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZE+-R=1-H 3,236,157 59,262 1,830 4,375 1,221 3,302,845
Additions e 16,922 - - - - 16,922
Brchange differences on translation ~ BEE4AVEHEE (241,371) 1,794 5 176 6 (239,390)
As at 31 December 2021 R-F--F+-f=1-H 3,011,708 61,056 1,835 4,551 1,221 3,080,377

Accumulated depreciation ZithE
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-nE+ZA=1-H (171643) (1757) (1820) (3477) (1,156) (195,669)
Charge for the year R (33,152) (1,866) = = (14) (35,032)
Eichange differences on translation ~ BER4 v EHEE (18419) (1,289) (10) (329) (13) (20060)
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEFT-AZ1-A (223,214) (20,728) (1,830) (3,806) (1,183) (250,761)
Charge for the year ERiE (36,174) (2,002) - - (10) (38,186
Eichange differences on translation ~ MEE4 BN EE 18,139 (661) (5) (159) 6) 17,308
As at 31 December 2021 RZE--F+-A=1-H (241,249) (23,391) (1,835) (3,965) (1,199) (271,639)

Impairment loss AEER
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=1-A (6,705) - - - - (6,705)
Change for the year EniTE (333,609) = = = = (333,609)
Exchange differences on translation BEELVEHER (25078) = = = = (25078)
As at 31 December 2020 R=Z-EE+-F=1-H (365,392) - - - - (365,392)
Eichange differences on translation ~ MEE4 v EHEE 27,250 - - - - 27,250
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-%5+-f=1-H (338,142) - - - - (338,142)

Net carrying amount REFE
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--£+-A=+-R 2,432,317 37,665 - 586 28 2,470,596
As at 31 December 2020 A\E-EE+-R=1-H 2,647,551 38534 - 569 38 2686692
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% -  BERRE®)
The Group’s land is included in hotel properties. The analysis of REEZ Tzt NB/EWENRN - i
land is stated as follows: ZANEINIT -
Analysis of land: T ST
2021 2020
B —F —ETEF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
In France, freehold PEB - Sk A ZERE 1,841,244 1,989,633
At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s hotel properties with R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 " &&
a net carrying amount of approximately HK$2,432,317,000 (2020: B B TR E 49 2,432,317,0008 T ( — &
approximately HK$2,647,551,000) were pledged to secure general ZTF : #2,647,551,0008 ) 2B/ T
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27). BIEMECEER  FAREEER

—ARIRITRYE 2 M an (PIFE27) -

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. EREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the AEBEERAEEEZREEREFA
movements during the year are as follows: BT ¢
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles  equipment Total
By AE BAERE st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-Z5—-H—H 3,578 182 85 3,845
Depreciation charge FEFRS (1,659) (118) (37) (1.814)
Exchange differences on BEEEZEN
translation =5 - 9 5 14

As at 31 December2020and R=-ZFE=-F&F+—-f

1 January 2021 =+—-HK
—E-—-%—H—H 1,919 73 53 2,045
Addition NE - 131 - 131
Depreciation charge FERS (1,468) (157) = (1,625)
Exchange differences on BREEEZER
translation = - (4) (4) (8)
As at 31 December 2021 R=—ZB=—-%+=H
Er=[E 451 43 49 543
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. EREE

Software
B4
HKS$000
FEIT

Cost %S
As at 1 January 2020 RZE-_TF—H—H 757
Exchange differences on translation BREEECZERER 70
As at 31 December 2020 R-E_ZEF+_H=+—H 827
Exchange differences on translation BMEELVIENZ% (25)
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+-A=+—H 802

Amortisation e
As at 1 January 2020 N_T_ETF—H—H (459)
Provided for the year FNRE (95)
Exchange differences on translation MEEAZIERZE (49)
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZTF+ZA=+—H (603)
Provided for the year FRNRE (32)
Exchange differences on translation MEEAZIENZRE 19
As at 31 December 2021 R-TE—_—F+-A=+—H (616)

Net carrying amount FREFE

As at 31 December 2021 R-B-—-%+=-A=+—H 186
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZEF+-_HA=+—H 224
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. RBEQF2RE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
+=A=+-8 +-A=+-H
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 7,046 32,167
Goodwill on acquisition WS 7 g 1,256 1,219
Provision for impairment BB (8,302) =
- 33,386
Particulars of the material associate are as follows: BRAEARHEQRFBNOT
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interest
Particulars of registration attributable to
Name issued shares held and business the Group Principal activity
r5E
F¥ERT EMRYL/ EiLEEE
1 ROFE BLREXLE BREol TEEE
Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering Science & Registered capital PRC/Mainland China 37125 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Co, Ltd. of RMB1 each Bl /HREIARE chemical products
IR EREERAR MR HERHEIER
BRARKIT
The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held through a NEBREBEBES AT ZKETEB
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. RNABETNEENBATIES o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-T——

17.

FrZA=+—HLEFE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The Group acquired the 37.125% equity interests in Beijing
Chemical Reaction Engineering Science & Technology Co., Ltd
(the "Associate”). During the year, a major subsidiary (“Associate
Subsidiary”) of the Associate was impacted by then the socio-
economic environment in the People’'s Republic of China,
rendered the Associate Subsidiary’s development progress as well
as business and financial performance being less than satisfactory.
The Associate Subsidiary had also been involved in certain cases
of litigation regarding an outstanding balance on construction
of its production plant (“Litigation Case”). As at the date of this
consolidated financial statements, such Litigation Case has not
been resolved. The Group recorded HK$8,302,000 covering the
provision of impairment of the investment due to their unsatisfied
financial performance with no obvious upturn or potential
financing solutions in the foreseeable future (31 December 2020:
Nil).

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of the associate adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated statement of financial position:

17.

RBEQATZRE®E)
AEERBILERINBEERBEERA
A (B2 R AE]1)37.125% A% #E - $$
B BEARZ—HBHETEHNBEA
((BERNBA TJ)Z%&E;&F;M&
E¥BRUMERBAHITHEAREIMNE
ERZESEERRYEMARE - B
EMBARINMES G THEBRELEER
EREENREERENFAEHF
MEM])  c RAZEVBHREBE -
ZEFRDRGERTE - KEEESE
8,302,000/ TR BB EREH - REA
HBRI|BRE - BAEDR AR E
AT E B ERMERATR(ZE
TF+-_A=+—8:&)-

TERAABRZ AR I BEMRE -
ERSHBENEMERELARR
BRSPS AR A Z R ESH K -

31 December 1 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEIT
Current assets MENVEE 121,009 272,640
Non-current assets JEMENE E 981,410 906,918
Current liabilities mENEE (686,264) (620,770)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE (369,981) (445,746)
Net assets BEFE 46,174 113,042
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in HARSERBE NG 2R
the associate: AR -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership KEBZHARELA 37.125% 37.125%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate ~ ANEEE(REE 2 N R EE
HE 17,142 41,967
Adjustments arising from step acquisition FRRAKRARERZ P WEE
using accumulated cost approach EA R (10,096) (9,800)
Goodwill on acquisition WiiE 2 g2 1,256 1,219
Provision for impairment B (8,302) =
- 33,386
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17. REBEQATZRE®E)

For the period

from

3 March 2020

(date of

commencement

Fortheyear of equity method

ended accounting) to

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

M-T_TF

=A=H

(E=mgHA

RigEE)REE

BE-2-—-F —EB-%F

+=ZA=+-HB +ZA=t+—H

LFE 1FHAE

HK$'000 HKS'000

FET FET

Revenue g 84,715 -
Loss for the year/period F/HAER (68,773) (17,835)
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the associate generated BHE_ZE_—F+-_A=+—HIF
revenue HK$84,715,000. For the period from 3 March 2020 (date of & - Bt N A E A4 WS 84,715,000 78
commencement of equity method accounting) to 31 December TLeRZZEZTF=A=-BE=mZEEg
2020, the associate did not generate any revenue, which was in TEEMNHABRAR E T SF+=
the phase of construction. A=+—HHE  BEQRERER

PEER - SR A TR o

18. INVENTORIES 18. ®FE
2021 2020
—EgE-—F —T-F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FEIT
Food and beverages B R 576 686
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B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—

19.

—Ft=A=t—BILEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. FEWERF
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHT FHT
Trade receivables FEUBR FX 4,539 =

Hotel operation revenue is normally settled by cash or credit
card. For travel agents and certain corporate customers, the
credit period is generally one month. There is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

BEEERA—RARSHEARX
e IRTHEEETRARELME

BRER-—RA—EA LEBEXEE
SRR o A5 BB E B R U R

BEASEMAEMRKEMEEHEE
e o FEURBRFRIL AT B ©

RERPMEER - REFRA B
B BUEER(EMREBERE) 2K
BT

2021 2020

HKS’000 HKS'000

FET FE

Within T month —{& A AR 3,222 =
1 to 3 months —Z=1{@A 838 -
Over 3 months =@AMNE 479 =
4,539 -

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit losses have also incorporated forward-looking
information. The expected credit loss rates for trade receivables
that were not yet past due are minimal.
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20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

20.

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

ANRE HttEWRERK
& E

2021 2020

—B-—F —E_THF

HK$’000 HKS$000

FET FET

Input tax of value added tax IE(E R 2 HETEF 18 42,390 34,010
Government grants receivable JFEE LK R T 45 B 5,975 1,885
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 2,388 2,410
Deposits and other receivables R R EMEWRIE 1,627 2,225
Corporate income tax prepayment T EFE AN RIE 86 93
52,466 40,623

None of the deposits and other receivables was either past due
or impaired and there was no history of default and past due
amounts.

The recoverability of deposits and other receivables and interest
receivables is classified as Stage 1 without any significant increase
in credit risk tracked since initial recognition. Their recoverability
was assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors,
and the expected credit loss as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 was considered to be minimal.

12 & o E Al 8 UK TR X A H SRl
B - TMEEDRSRLEHFUR -

Be M EAMERRIEU R ERFEZ
WERtHFEEAE —BE - BV
BRI - EERRIEEES KE L
Fo HBIMDELEEBAZEE
BRAMAE MR- —F+_-A
=+—Bk=ZF=FF+=_A=1+—
A FEEE B BB RS A8 -
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B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—

21.

—Ft=A=t—BILEE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

21.

BAFEFABRBZSMEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET FET
Investment in convertible bonds, BAVEFE 2T RRES
at fair value & 96,714 106,333

On 16 November 2020, the Company invested in the unsecured
convertible bonds issued by Zhonghua Gas Holdings Limited
("Zhonghua Gas", FEMRRITARBR A E]) at a face value of
HK$97,800,000. Zhonghua Gas is listed on GEM (stock code: 8246),
and is principally engaged in the provision of diverse integrated
new energy services in China. The convertible bonds shall be for a
term of 3 years, bearing interest at the rate of 8% per annum with
the conversion price at HK$0.27. The Company can exercise the
conversion at any time until the maturity date.

The fair value of the investment in convertible bonds as at 31
December 2021 is determined by reference to the valuation
carried out by an external independent valuer.

With the valuation work detailed in note 41 to the financial
statements, a fair value loss of HK$9,619,000 was recognised
in profit or loss during the year (2020: a fair value gain of
HK$8,533,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

BERREEEYUARCEH
2N

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-TF

HK$’000 HKS$000

FAET FHEITL

Cash and bank balances B & RIRTTHERR 911,008 935,415

Pledged deposits [REEEUESN (39,276) (42,544)
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBESEEY 871,732 892,871

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the pledged
deposits represented the time deposits pledged to secure
the repayment of interest arising from interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$10,244,000 (2020:
HKS$7,427,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months in Hong Kong and
Mainland China depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate to their
fair values.

RZEZ—F+—A=+—Bk=%
—EF+-A=Z+—8 BEREXR
EEERIER A EREET BRITE
BFEZERER -

RZEZ—F+=ZRA=+—H " £&
EAAREFEZERE S RIBITESB A
10,244,000 L (ZF ZFF : 7,427,000
BIT) c ARBTIEREBRKEME
B oo X1 AR IR B KRR SNEE K
BIARAEIE - EERNEEEET -
AEBEEFBEREREITINEER
ZRITEARE IR EMER o

RITIFFIRE A RITHFHAN RBREUF
BHE - BB RPEAREZEHEH
FRAR-—HAE=FEAATE  RIA
SEZAKREFRME  WIREAR
2 55 HATE BT SRR R R AR B o $RTT
EHENMEEREFRERNEERIFE
R E LI ZIRIT - WEEBE
ZREEEE A FERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

FEAS BRX

RERYEEER - HWEFZAHE
B ENERRZRESTOT

2021 2020

=B —-F —E-FF

HKS’000 HKS'000

FETT FET

Within 1 month — & AR 1,354 410
1 to 3 months —Z2={@A - 6
Over 3 months =@AMNUE - 2,668
1,354 3,084

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms of 30 to 60 days.

FERBR R AT B R — MM 30H =60

BAEE -

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, HttENRERESER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET TF#ET
(Restated)
(#&E:5)
Other tax payables HAth TR 37,780 27,551
Accruals FEst & M 15,199 11,060
Other payables Hh FE 5K 5,360 10,426
58,339 49,037
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no significant HMEARIBE TG E - AR ERER

balances aged over one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. THEEBMTA
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Liabilities/
(assets) Liabilities
&8E/

(BE) afE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TEIT

Interest rate swaps FZREHEE 4 129 9,859
Portion classified as current portion DRSS D 2 5o (516) (9,859)
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 7 (387) -
At 31 December 2021, the Group had an interest rate swap R-_FE-——F+-_A=+—H ' &~&
agreement in place with a notional amount of EUR175,000,000 B £ 7T %% 4% 4175000000 8 &
whereby it received interest at a variable rate equal to the Europe TRREE AL o I AEERE
Interbank Offered Rate ("EURIBOR’) on the notional amount and ESEIHBEENETTEETREFE
paid interest at a fixed rate of 0.19% (2020: 0.19%). The swap is (B @ BT RIZEIRE |) 2 2 F =
designated as a hedging instrument to hedge the exposure to WELF B » WiIHEFE B X019E (&
changes in future cash outflows of interest arising from its 5-year ZEE019E)XNFE o FititsHf
secured loan (note 27). BRBIEEEREHP TR - R

4 HIA IR B AR (B 3E27) FILB 2 R
FHAS e BB -
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B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Cash flow hedge - Interest rate risk
There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and
the hedging instrument as the terms of the interest rate swap
critically match the terms of the fixed rate loan (i.e., notional
amount, maturity, payment and reset dates). The Group has
established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging relationships as
the underlying risk of the interest rate swap is identical to that of
the hedged risk component. In addition, based on quantitative
assessment prepared by the management by comparing the
changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument against the
changes in the fair value of the hedge item attributable to the
hedged risk, the hedge of the interest rate swap was assessed
to be highly effective with insignificant ineffective portion. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the effective portion of the
hedging instrument arising from the hedge of the interest rate
swap was included in the hedging reserve as follows:

25.

PTEEMIAW)
EE%/MLE%]L/EF_*UTHF%
HRMERHAEH 2 GREESER
ZHER(ANEEESRE  JIHR - MR
EFTEH) —B MutbR IR E E Y
HMITAZRAFELERE - ANEBER
HAHBRERREZE R ERL - RE
ﬁfIJTTéﬁﬁ/\%’JZ*HF%J—LM,\ff&ﬁ/#
[\ f &F > 2 MR RA R AE R o tEoh - AR
BEBEEARETTANQFESE
PEEPREREGEHPEENQFE
HEETHL MR EENE - A
R HENEPRFIERBERR
MBERP L TEKR - BE_T - —
FHZA=ZT—BIEFE  MXEH
BRERELNE D TANE U
DEFFAEREBQOT -

2021 2020
—E--F —TTF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Total fair value profit/(loss) included in STAS B AT E
the hedging reserve wAl/ (E18) BE 6,852 (7,699)
Deferred tax on changes in fair value NSSIEE i o T 1 (1,713) 1,925
Reclassified from other comprehensive HEME2EABRAETHBIR
income and recognised in finance costs included 1827 2 BA AR A MR (M517)
in the statement of profit or loss (note 7) 3,067 2,969
Deferred liability /tax on reclassification to BN EERRKRZ
profit or loss BIEEE/BIE (767) (743)
Net profit/(loss) on cash flow hedges BeREHPZRR,/(BR)FH 7,439 (3,548)

1 52 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



26.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

26. HES®E
MEABEREREFRNEHNT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—

— A=t

2021 2020
:—ﬂf I —gng
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FHEIT
Carrying amount at 1 January A—A—RZEEE 2,155 3,933
New leases EIHE 131 =
Accretion of interest recognised during FRERERFEEM
the year 67 152
Payments - (1,864) (1,943)
Exchange differences on translation BREEECZEHZERE (8) 13
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+ZA=+—BZKEE 481 2,155
Analysed into: ST
Current portion BIEAES 7 481 1,749
Non-current portion JEBNER R 4> - 406
Maturity profile of lease liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—FRZZFZFTF+ZRA=
2020 is as follows: +—H HEAEZFEBERNAT
2021 2020
—EC-—-F —E-FF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FEIT
Within one year —E R 481 1,814
In the second year EF - 409
Total undiscounted lease liabilities REVREEA GBS 481 2,223
Discount amount BhIREE = (68)
Total present value of lease liabilities HEaFERRE 481 2,155
Current portion BHAER 7 481 1,749
Non-current portion JEBNEAER > - 406
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Analysed into: PaR)ilE
Within one year —FR 481 1,749
In the second year E_F - 406
Total present value of lease liabilities HEAERRE 481 2,155
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. FTEBITEE
2021 2020
CEC-F “20%%
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
Rhi% Maturity HKS'000 LU Maturiy HKS 000
(%) %A Fiér %) 5EA TET
Current L]
Bank loans - secured BIET-EHA
Three month “RABTRETRE - - - 019%+22% 14 October 2024 1,625,806
EURIBOR+2.2% HEMIE -2
TATHA
Non-current F0H
Bankloans - secured BET-ERA
Three month SEABTERTRE  019%+22%* 140ctober 2024 1,516,793 = = =
EURIBOR+2.2% ! e E S 1 1:3
AL
1,516,793 1,625,806
* Includes the effects of a related interest rate swap as disclosed in & BRI BTN 25T 5E 2 fH
note 25 to the financial statements. FRIg A 2 & -
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BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—H+-"A=+—HItFE
27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. FFERITEE®E)
(continued)
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FE FET
Analysed into: PaR)ilE
Bank loans repayable: IRITE R
Within one year or on demand —FERFIRERK - 1,625,806
In the second year F-F = -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-FEERF
(BREEMF) 1,516,793 -
Total HEt 1,516,793 1,625,806
0) On 14 October 2019, the Group renewed loans of EUR175,000,000 0) RZZE—AF+A+ETA - &
from Societe Generale Corporate & Investment Banking, which £ B E & H [ Societe Generale
bear interest at the three-month EURIBOR plus 2.2%, and Corporate & Investment Banking {&
will be repaid on 14 October 2024. The loans were pledged AZ 175000000 ZZE R - BHEfE
by the Group’s hotel property situated in France, which had BR=EARTERITEERSM
an aggregate carrying value of HK$2,432,317,000 as at 31 WEFE F WEARZZTZMFE+
December 2021 (2020: HK$2,647,551,000). Deposits amounting A+HBEE - FlBERUAEER
to HK$39,276,000 (2020: HK$42,544,000) were pledged to secure FEB 2 BEMEEER - ER
the repayment of interest arising from interest-bearing bank R —F+ZA=+—HZK
borrowings. H #8184 2,432,317,000 % 7T ( = 2
— T 1 2,647,551 ooo;’%ﬁ)
ﬁéi?%39276ooo,%7z(_7 —E i
42,544,000 7T ) Z F R E 1EHE T -
EREEFNERITEEMEE ZF
BZHER-
28. OTHERLONG TERM PAYABLES 28. HitREAENFIE
2021 2020
B — 4 —ETHF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FHET FET
Defined benefit plans AEBMETE 1,635 2,857
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B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

28.

OTHER LONG TERM PAYABLES (continued)

Under defined-benefit plans, the Group has an obligation
to provide benefits to employees in France either on their
retirement or when they leave the Group. The Group's defined
benefit plans are unfunded and are covered by provisions
recorded in the financial statements. The Group’s obligations
under defined benefit plans are measured using the projected
unit credit method. This method involves the use of long-term
actuarial assumptions concerning demographic variables (such as
employee turnover and mortality) and financial variables (such as
future increases in salaries and discount rates). These variables are
reviewed each year. The discount rate is determined by reference
to the market yields at the reporting date of high quality corporate
bonds. The principal actuarial assumptions used for the major
defined benefit plan of the Group as at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

28.

Hit REIEMN IR ()
RIFRERFGE - & BEWNEE
B ASEEEBREEESRH
BN REENATRAFEERE
FESMUE  BEHTHEVBRKRD
BERE AEBRATEMEIE
THEREEDHABFEMNERER
BEoRAESREREEAOGGE
(AR FH < RAEREEEIN) KBS
BERR ZEEETFHLHETE
ZoBWREDNKSLEZRBHSESE
NEEFNMEREERETE - RE2
WMEAMLEER  ASBEZZATEEF
STEITANEEBERRLOT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF
% %
Discount rate JElp 0.98 032
Expected rate of salary increase TEHRE 18 hn L % 1.40 1.40
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at NEREAMLEEH - B ABREFTE
the end of the reporting period is shown below: E(LBBRENFIRIT
Rate Adjustmentto
change to the liability
=3 ) BEAE
% HKS'000
FET
2021 —E-—F
Discount rate BLIR =& 1.00 (10)
Expected rate of salary increase TEERF 2 hnth & 1.47 16
2020 —B-EE
Discount rate BRIR & 034 4
Expected rate of salary increase TEHE @GNtk X 147 19
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28.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER LONG TERM PAYABLES (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on
a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
occurring at the end of each year. The sensitivity analysis is
based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would

occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of

28.

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

Hit REIBMN IR ()
tz_’éﬁl DM NERHRERBMNE
Elxiﬂiixfﬁ““ﬂjiﬁ/\iﬂi“iﬂﬁ

RAMTEETHEN ST AETE - &

BESTERE—EABRRHE

H%Fﬁﬁﬁ’r&ﬁ“ﬂ%%f\“
DA RRIAERBNEEHNER

B RHRZERINE @3@%?\

ML EEAE o

T BN A BERPERNER

!ﬁW‘F

profit or loss in respect of the plan are as follows: S UNNE
2021 2020
—B-—f& —ETHF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHT FHT
Current service cost BIHA AR A5 B AR 144 46
Interest expense MEFRX 7 19
151 65

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligations are set out below:

FUERMEBEERREZSHHEIIMT

2021 2020

=—f —E_FTF

HKS$’000 HKS$000

FET FET

(Restated)

(&E5)

At 1January —H—H 2,857 2,366

Restatement (HKAS) rEy|(EB g ER]) (595) S

Current service cost BIVEA AR 75 A A 144 46

Interest expense FEFRX 7 19
(Gain)/loss an actuarial changes in HEmz B WARREESELS

other comprehensive income z (), & 1E (558) 200

Exchange realignment P& X % (220) 226

At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 1,635 2,857

The defined benefit plan is unfunded, and there are no expected

contributions in the next 12 months.

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations as at 31
December 2021 was 10 to 30 years (31 December 2020: 10 to 30

years).

RERINAEBRABEFESHER
AR+ B A W EFRHHK

R-ZFB-_—H+-A=+—B RER

FMEENFEHERES %U%m 130 (=
TE-FTF+_H=+—H 10FI30F) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. ELEHIA
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the EEHBEEELREENREAZEFHI
year are as follows: o
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Fair value
adjustments
from
acquisition
of subsidiaries
upon
purchase
price Cash flow
allocation hedges Others Total
REBE
BRo#E%
s B Y
DNEEEZ RERE
AR ERAE Eapiad Hit @st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
FEx FEr FEx FET
As at 1 January 2021 RZEZ—%—HA—
H 162,528 (2,465) 4,516 164,579
Deferred tax credited to statementof ~ FREBRKRTAZ
profit or loss during the year (note 11)  JEFEFRIE (HsE11) (1,604) - (1,178) (2,782)
Deferred tax credited to other FREEMZEBA
comprehensive income during the year 5t A Z RIEFRIA - 2,480 - 2,480
Exchange differences M N =5 (12,056) 82 (289) (12,263)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-ZBE-—%F+=A8
at 31 December 2021 =+—HZEL
HIEBEESR 148,868 97 3,049 152,014
Deferred tax assets REHRIBEESE
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future
taxable profits Other Total
A {40
RIRFERB
Bz B8 Hit @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE FE FET
As at 1 January 2021 w2 —%F—H—H 42,878 - 42,878
Deferred tax credited to the statement of FREBEKTAZIE
profit or loss during the year (note 11) ERIBE(MFF1) 6,176 - 6,176
Deferred tax credited to other FREEMZEBAGT
comprehensive income during the year AZELERIE = 409 409
Exchange differences fE W E R (3,452) - (3,452)
Gross deferred tax assets RZE-—F+=A
at 31 December 2021 =+—HBZEE
HIERERR 45,602 409 46,011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets (continued)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets a
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement
financial position.

29.

nd
of

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

EEBIE (%)

EEREEE(E)

REHRHS  EFEEHELEERA
BEERGEA VISR RRPIE -

HK$’000
FHETT
Deferred tax assets recognised RZEZ—F+-A=+—H%&E
in the consolidated statement of RE MBI BRPERZ
financial position at 31 December 2021 BETHIBEE 42,865
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RZZEZ—F+=-A=+—H8%
in the consolidated statement of REBMSIRNBRRPER
financial position at 31 December 2021 REHIEAEFE 148,868
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE
Fair value
adjustments
from
acquisition
of subsidiaries
upon
purchase
price
allocation Others Total
REEE
B #E
WS A A
PTEEZ
REBEFHE Hitb @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET T FET
As at 1 January 2020 RZE-—ZTF—H—H 232,170 5,263 237,433
Deferred tax credited to statement of FAEBRERITAZE
profit or loss during the year (note 71) ERE (K1) (85,043) (1,154) (86,197)
Exchange differences MR ERE 15,401 407 15,808
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZE_ZEF+-A=
at 31 December 2020 T—RZELEHIEE
R 162,528 4,516 167,044
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EEBIEE)
Deferred tax assets BEEHEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
Cash flow against future
hedges taxable profits Total
EE:SiiEi
TE A EE et
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T TET TR
As at 1 January 2020 NZE_TF—H—
H 1,094 16,520 17,614
Deferred tax credited to FALEBRKRITALZ
the statement of profit or loss BIETRIE (MtaE11)
during the year (note 11) - 23,124 23,124
Deferred tax credited to other FANEEAM 2 ERA
comprehensive income during the year 5t A Z IERERI 1B 1,182 = 1,182
Exchange differences fE H =% 189 3,234 3,423
Gross deferred tax assets R-ZZE_ZTF+_H
at 31 December 2020 =t+—HZEEH
REERRE 2,465 42,878 45343
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and NEHRMS  ATECHBEEELA
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of EORGEE G NERER P -
financial position.
HKS'000
FET
Deferred tax assets recognised RZE_TF+_A=+—HE
in the consolidated statement of AR KRR RERZ
financial position at 31 December 2020 BEEHIAE E 40,827
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RZZEZEF+-A=+—H%
in the consolidated statement of FE B RKR TR
financial position at 31 December 2020 RIEHIEE B H5 162,528
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29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29.
Deferred tax assets (continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

EZEBE(E)
EEBEEE ()
AR TSIE B RSB IE S E

2021 2020
—B-—F g 3
HKs$’000 HKS'000
FET TETT
Tax losses arising in Hong Kong © REBEEZ BIBAERY 251,488 238313
Tax losses arising in Mainland China AR B R REE A4 2 B TEE5 a0 = 855
Tax losses arising in Luxembourg ™ REZRBES 2HEEIE 757 757
252,245 239,925

(i) The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$251,488,000 (i) AEEBRBEEELECZHEEBERB

(2020: HK$238,313,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose.

(ii) The Group does not have any tax losses arising in Mainland
China (2020: HK$855,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the entities.

(iii) The Group has tax losses arising in Luxembourg of HK$757,000
(2020: HK$757,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the entities in which the losses
arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
above tax losses and deductible temporary differences arising in
certain subsidiaries as they have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

2514880008 T ( — T = & F :
238,313,000 7T ) + Al MR FERA1E
HIEEBEBZ ARz BEREER
SE A o

(ii) AN B R AP BOK B A E AT
HRIEERE(ZZ-FF : 855000
JL)  BRAGEN AR EEERE
ZEHBERBEHN  EEAREB
R—E=RFRER °

(iif) AEEREREEEZMERES
757,000 T (ZFE =FF : 757,000
BIT) - AIERFE R R S E A
B2 BB BRERTER -

VERETHEBRARMEL 2 LR
TR R AT 2 R R N
HEE  RARZEMBARCHRA
EFERE-RER ARFRESNAR
TRAIGEGELRRTEAN NS H R
MIABRISLAER -

2R B [A) L B SRR 35 A8 3 NP AT
AFEHRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

30. ISSUED CAPITAL 30. ERITRAE
Number of shares Issued capital
REGBE BRITRA
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F —E-THF “E--F Sk 23
'000 000 HK$’000 HKS'000
i FR FiEx FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRER0I0B L ERR
Authorised: ETE
At beginning and end of year RENRER 20,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERETRAR
At beginning and end of year RENREFL 12,778,880 12,778,880 1,277,888 177,888
31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. BRESE

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 17 May 2012 (the “Effective
Date”), the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “2012 Option Scheme”), which is for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest. Under the 2012 Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
participants, including directors, employees, suppliers, customers
and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The 2012 Option Scheme will remain in
force for 10 years from 17 May 2012.
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31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2012 Option Scheme, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and not yet exercised under the 2012 Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The
subscription price for shares in respect of any options granted
under the 2012 Option Scheme will be a price determined by the
board of the directors of the Company, in its absolute discretion,
but in any case will not be lower than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of offer, which must be a trading day;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant, provided that for the
purpose of calculating the subscription price, where the shares
have been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than five trading
days, the new issue price shall be used as the closing price for
any trading day falling within the period before such listing. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. Unless otherwise
determined by the directors at their sole discretion, there is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

No eligible participant shall be granted an option if the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to the date of the proposed grant to such eligible participant
would exceed 1% of the shares of the Company for the time
being in issue unless the proposed grant has been approved by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting with the
proposed eligible participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may, in its absolute discretion, determine which shall not be more
than ten years from the date of grant of the option and subject
to the provisions of early termination thereof and the Board may
provide restrictions on the exercise of an option.

Pursuant to the 2012 Option Scheme, the Company granted
options to subscribe for 145,780,000 shares to eligible participants
in December 2017.

31.

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

BRETE (%)
BEZZ-——FERES  FTER
BE_ZE-——FEREFSRAAT
EREMERET IR B EERITE
ZIEREEITERA TRITZBRME
o THEBBTESBITRMG Z30% -
BEZZT-——FEREFSEL 2 F
MEREZROREBEEEEAARE
SEREMNBETZER  HREW
BRATEBATEEZERS VRN
REBEHBH(AARSB)EBRATH
WMEFTMWTE  (NRONRBEERD
BEARAERS BEE AT B REAT
WEHWWE - KGR L B2 %
DEE HRTEREEMS - Wk
PR ERTRREZLSH © 8
FERTEBEARZE ETABHER
FRRXZEZHHE - REWNERE
B - AR ABRARRZ1.0087T
EREREREZRE -BREEST
RMIBREIN  WELEBERET
FRINBRF AN REERART °

mEARER2EERKBRE K&
BEYARAEREZERHERZ12
BEAARTRERTEHRGERSH
E2BREBEETERARITE L
B 2R ITERA BT RSEITL
ARBBNEBRBBARBERDH
TN Z1% » BRIFEEBIR B 2 B2
EREARRABRREBIERASG LA -
ARetEgaREBREZEER
SEENEBEATORERE &
AINGEROA BB -

BERESEAIRBE-_ZT——FEK
BB 2GR REZE2EBIS
SR TE 2 HA ] P AT fa] By ) 17 {50 P ASUHE
HETTE AR BRER D B BET T
BB+ F - WESREAK LGSR
# - AEFSAUREEBTERER
2R -

KRR ZE—tF+_ARE-=
——FBEEFERSERZEER
o B AR A2 LA SR B8 145,780,000 A8 A% 15 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-—F+-A=+—RHALFE

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BRESE )
The following share options were outstanding under the 2012 FR - TNHIE-_ZT— _FERETE
Option Scheme during the years: T ZBEARRE R ARTT(E -
Closing price
per share
Exercise Price hefore
Forfeited/  Outstanding pershare  the date on
Outstanding Granted Exercised lapsed asat  (subjectto which the
at 1 January during during during  31December anti-dilutive  options were
Grantees 2021 the year the year the year 2021 adjustment) granted
i
c8--f R-2--F  SRIEE RRiE
-A-8 AR/ tZA=t-B  (TkRE  REREA
ARA AT AR FRE XM GENd wEE) SRUTE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 HK$ HK$
& & & & & A A
Directors £z
W Xue Jian BRrrt 127,780 - - - 127,780 0.100 0.047
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen 3 Sy 10,000 - - - 10,000 0.100 0.047
Other employees EhbEE 7,000 - - - 7,000 0.100 0.047
144,780 - - - 144,780
Brercisable at theend of the year KA F17E 144,780 144,780
Weighted average exercise price B METHGEE
per share (HKS) (&) 0.1
(losing
price per share
Exercise before
Qutstanding ~ Price per share the date on
Qutstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited/ asat (subject to which the
1 January during during  lapsedduring 31 December  anti-dilutive  options were
Grantees 2020 the year the year the year 2020 adjustment) granted
i NZE2FF SRARE BB
) -5-A )  gmpn/ tSASTOR (THREE BEASE
R RATTE FRRL FhfTiE X RIAITE 8 ERUDE
000 000 000 000 000 HKS HKS
T 4 H TR TR 7 AT
Directors E3
. Xue Jian Bst 127,780 - - - 127,780 0100 0047
M. Law Wing Chi, Stephen BAERE 10,000 - - - 10000 0100 0047
Other employees EfbEE 7,000 - - = 7,000 0100 0047
144780 s s i 144780
Biercisableatthe end of theyear XA PA7(E 144,780 144780
Weighted average exercise BRMETHRE
price per share (HKS) (1) 01
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31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The exercise price and exercise period of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting years are as follows:

31 December 2021 and 2020
TR FRIEZFEF+ZA=1+—H

Shares to be
allotted and issued

31.

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

MR
EEEMQE fe AR 17 {5 B S
ZijﬁfﬁfZifiﬁfﬂﬂﬁDT_-

Exercise price

Grantees upon exercise of per share*  Exercise period
BITREEST
EEA Aot N 31T 2 Itn BRITEE 17EH
000’ HKS
Th BT
Directors of the Company 137,780 0.100 15 December 2017 to 16 May 2022
RRARIESE —_E—+tE+-_A+hRBA=E
—E-FRHA+H
Other employees 7,000 0.100 15 December 2017 to 16 May 2022
HihfE S —T—+F+-At+HBEE
—ECFRA+TRA
144,780

*

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

No share options were exercised during the year (2020: Nil).

At the end of the reporting year, the Company had options
to subscribe for 144,780,000 shares outstanding under the
2012 Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 144,780,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company, additional share capital of HK$14,478,000
and additional share premium of HK$2,158,000 transferred from
the share option reserve to share premium.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had options to subscribe for 144,780,000 (31 December
2020: 144,780,000) shares outstanding under the 2012 Option
Scheme, which represented 1.13% (31 December 2020: 1.13%)
of the Company’s shares in issue. At the date of approval of the
financial statements, the total number of ordinary shares available
for issue under the 2012 Option Scheme was 1,277,887,980 shares
(31 December 2020: 1,277,887,980), which represented 10% (31
December 2020: approximately 10%) of the Company’s shares in
issue.

* R E T H R AL ZE 1T » RARA]
AR EMBCIEES - BRI
TTREER] T % -

imiﬁ%&%%ﬁﬁk_Y_?$=

~—

WMEEHEEH AR
——FERETETE
144,780,000 f% I% 3 2 i &
K o RIEA D BB 2 A
HITEMRITEERESS
%17 144,780,000 % X 1 7] & #
DA% 28 14,478,00078 7T & BESNIR 19 i (B
2,158,000/ TR B IR EFEBE R =R G

/ﬁﬁ{g °

Nt gy
Rl
N
ny

RZEFBEHRERMERR - XATHE
:”-‘ﬁ%%%?%?%ﬁﬂ%%
144,780,000 #& ( — TFE+ A=
+—Ermwwww)%62ﬁ$
THEEBRE  HARFEBTRNG
T1B3%(ZE_F+-_A=+—8":
113%) - REATEBmARMERH  £=
2—_¢%%%HﬂTTT%ﬁZ%
B A 51,277,887,980 (T =&

F+—H=+—H :1,277,887,980% ) i%
7 HARBEEITRGBI0%(ZE =
TFE+-A=F+—8 : H10%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HEZ —F+ZA=1+—RHLFE

32. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 84 of the financial
statements.

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$131,000 and
HK$131,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for buildings, motor vehicles and office equipment (2020:
Nil).

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

The following are changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, except for the changes in lease
liabilities which have been disclosed in note 26 to financial

32.

33.

fE

AEER A ERBEFE S BES
EREBDHERMBEREUEL
AMEEDE2 -

(a)

(b)

BREREBRME

FEHFRERS

FRN - AEEEFERABEER
HEABZHERGEED A
#3131,0007% 7T 2. 131,000/ 7T -
THEEF RBERNRAERE
R ZZE_ZTF:F) -

MEETHMELECRERE

T RS EB AL 2 A
28 RATAEEDHRI

statements:

HER SRR M6

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings

TERITEE

HKS$’000

FET

At 1 January 2021 R-_ZE-_—F—HF—H 1,625,806
Effective interest rate amortisation fﬁf%ﬂrﬁﬁﬁ 4,809
Foreign exchange movement [E 5 & &) (113,822)
At 31 December 2021 RN-_EBE-_—F+-A=+—H 1,516,793

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings

FFRBRITERE

HKS'000

FEIT

1 January 2020 RZE-EF—H—H 1,480,951
Effective interest rate amortisation B IR F = 5 4619
Foreign exchange movement i 5 2 B 140,236
At 31 December 2020 RZE_TF+_H=+—H 1,625,806
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33.

34.

35.

36.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33.
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

GEBRERERMT (8)

(c) *HE ZEE%,,”,H:',%@%
RenB8RMFBEEZH TR

of cash flows is as follows: HaazEI R

2021 2020
:—ﬂf —= _97255'5
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Within operating activities KA TEE 46 94
Within financing activities BEES 1,797 1,791
1,843 1,885

PENSION SCHEME AND OTHER RETIREMENT 34. ENRESTEIRHEMEAKRER

BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The total MPF costs charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss are approximately HK$178,000 (2020: HK$186,000).

There is no provision under the MPF Scheme which whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future
contributions.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35.
As of 31 December 2021, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group’s bank loans
are included in note 14 and note 22 to the financial statements.

36.

AEBRBRGERTESET BRI
HMEEERERRBERY —ATHE
EHRBRHMEREERKREHGE ([ 2
BEstEl) - REBBESE M
Al R REEEEAFERES
DHEL - YRENBERRRFTX
o mBEEMECEER —ABYE
BRESRE EAXAKEZEED R
B AEERBESEELETM
R FRAHZA2BEETES -

EERRIHIEARBRSENLA A
8,000/ TL(ZE = F : 186,000/8

SRS A B E A B TR AT A A
HRAR KPR Z BRE ©

HAREE
NZEBE-—F+-A=+—0H0 " K&
B BT RBLE -

BEEEKMH
AREERERTERMEM 2 EEF
BEEHR I RRN 14 K22 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

37. LEASES 37.

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings,
motor vehicles and office equipment used in its operations.
Leases of buildings and motor vehicles generally have lease terms
between 2 and 3 years, while office equipment generally has lease
terms between 3 and 4 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Detailed information regarding right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities has been set out in notes 15 and 26,
respectively, to the financial statements.

(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

HE

FEEEREBA
AEBMABYREBEFEMERNE
FAERBMAERBEETZERBH
HEAKN BFRABEZHEZHY
—RR2FEIF MPLERBZHE
HI—RA3FE4F - EX L AEE
TRAREEAIIATEE RS EHE

(a) EAEEERHERE
FHREEELRTEERBEZFHIE
DRIE R BEHRERME 15 R
5F26 °

(b) HERZmXFERAZHEEEE

leases are as follows: BELON -
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HERGERNE 67 152
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FFE&EEIER 1,625 1,814
Expense relating to short-term leases and AR HHE N THEE
other leases with remaining lease terms R-ZE-ZTF+ A=+
ended on or before 31 December 2020  — B Z A& R 2 E b7
(included in administrative expenses) E2RAZ(GTATHEAS) 46 94
Total amount recognised in profit or loss  fEIBRKR TR ZELE 1,738 2,060
(c)  Thetotal cash outflow for leases and non-cash additions to () MEZRERLBEURER

right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in note
33(a) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases one of its buildings in Mainland China under
operating lease arrangement, with a lease term of within one
year. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$ 1,806,000 (2020: HK$1,688,000), details of which are included
in note 5 to the financial statements.
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37.

38.

39.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, undiscounted lease payments

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

37. HEwm)
AE@MESHBA(E)
R-B-—GR-_FT-FF+-A=

receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable +—H BEAEEHEHEMEPFIVZ
operating leases with its tenant are as follows: TAHELCERE  NEERRKE
FRRBREREERIBLAT ¢
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —E-FF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET T
Within one year —&FR 1,540 1,540
After one year but within two years —FREMERN 899 1,540
After two years but within three years MEBB=FRK - 899
2,439 3,979
COMMITMENTS 38. &I
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of AEEREHRAELEERATIER
the reporting periods: HIE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEENEE ST
Plant and machinery R M Es 66,352,000 -

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Related party transactions

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the period:

39. BBEALRB
(a) BBALRS
BZEHBmR i T Ea
2RI AREBER N R
B ATETSITEIRS

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEIT

An associate: /NI
Loan granted BEREER - 198,335
Interest income F B U A 12,085 8,743
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

39.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

39. BEBALTRBE)

Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) AT ZRERLE :
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEZTF
HKS’000 HKS$000
FET FET
Loan to an associate REFHE AR ZER 238,984 220,936
Provision for impairment BERE (103,641) =
135,343 220,936
Current portion BNHAZR 7> (48,108) (93,928)
Non-current portion FEENERER 87,235 127,008

The loan to an associate was secured by collateral
provided by the associate, bearing interest at a rate of 6%
per annum and repayable from April 2022 to April 2023 by
instalments.

The Group regularly monitors the business performance
of the associate. As at 31 December 2021, the associate
has been involved in certain cases of litigation regarding
an outstanding balance on construction of its production
plant as well as material going concern uncertainty. The
Group believe that there is significant increase in credit
risk of the loan and interest receivable from the associate
since initial recognition and a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure. Impairment loss of HK$103,641,000 (2020: Nil)
was recognised during the year.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

Key management personnel of the Group include
two (2020: two) executive directors, the respective
remuneration of which has been disclosed in note 9 to
financial statements.

Having due regard to the substance of the relationships,
the directors are of the opinion that meaningful
information relating to related party disclosures has been
adequately disclosed.
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40.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021

Financial assets

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

40. RERE S ZEREIA
REFRPHELEEH  SEemITHE
ZHREMERT
—_s-—

TREE

Financial assets

at fair value
through profit  Financial assets
orloss atamortised cost Total
BATERA R AR
BRveREE HE2EREE FoEy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Loan to an associate REFHELRZER - 135,344 135,344
Financial assets included in prepayments, &t AF&fF/IE -
other receivables and other assets Hibreda &
HtEEZ eREE - 1,627 1,627
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss LREE 96,714 = 96,714
Trade receivables Z 5 W IE - 4,539 4,539
Pledged deposits [REELEERA - 39,276 39,276
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEY - 871,732 871,732
96,714 1,052,518 1,149,232
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

40. ZEREHZEWMIAME)

Financial liabilities SREE
Derivatives
designated
as hedge
instruments Financial
in hedge liabilities at
relationships  amortised cost Total
EHHBREF
ETAHPIA REBEREAHE
Z{TETR ZERmAE @5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Trade payables JERBRR - 1,354 1,354
Derivative financial instruments MEEMIA 129 = 129
Financial liabilities included in other STAE MR FIER
payables and accruals EAtBRZcHEE - 5,360 5,360
Lease liabilities HEEE - 481 481
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRRTIEE - 1,516,793 1,516,793
129 1,523,988 1,524,117
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40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40.

(continued)

2020

Financial assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

BERB D 2EBMT A

TRMEE

Financial assets
at fair value
through profit

Financial assets at

or loss amortised cost Total
BATERA TREE SN

BR/eREE EZEREE BEt

HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000

FET T FET

Loan to an associate RIEFHENRZER - 220,936 220,936
Financial assets included in FTATER A - Hfts

prepayments, other receivables and EUFIBREMERE

other assets TRIBE = 2,225 2,225
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABR L

through profit or loss CREE 106,333 = 106,333

Pledged deposits [REAECEES = 42,544 42,544

Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY - 892,871 892,871

106,333 1,158,576 1,264,909
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Financial liabilities

40. ZEREHZEMIAME)

®

i

A&

Derivatives
designated
as hedge
instruments
in hedge Financial liabilities
relationships  at amortised cost Total
SRR R
BERYHPIA REFEKAHE
ZITETR ZEmBE st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FHET FET
Trade payables FEfTHER X = 3,084 3,084
Derivative financial instruments TEEBMIA 9,859 = 9,859
Financial liabilities included in other SPAEAMERRIE K
payables and accruals EAtBRAZeHMEE - 10,426 10,426
Lease liabilities HEaE = 2,155 2,155
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRRTIEE - 1,625,806 1,625,806
9,859 1,641,471 1,651,330
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41.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

41.

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

EMIAZAFERAVEE
&
TRIFAKEZ R TAZRAE
RATE(EREERATESEAEE
EBRIL)

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AVE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F e e 33 —E--f e S 23
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEL FEr FET FET
Financial assets CHEE
Loan to an associate REFHENEZ
R 87,235 127,008 87,235 118,323
Financial assets at fair BATEFABREZ
value through profit or loss SREE 96,174 106,333 96,174 106,333
183,949 233,341 183,949 224,656
Financial liabilities cREE
Derivative financial instruments TEemIA 129 9,859 129 9,859

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, loans receivable, trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, the current portion of a loan to
an associate, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, the current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings
and the current portion of lease liabilities approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the non-
current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group
approximate to their fair values due to their floating interest rates.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the non-current
portion of lease liabilities and financial liabilities included in other
long-term payables of the Group approximate to their carrying
amounts due to their carrying amounts are present value and
internal rates of return are close to rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

ERECHETISHZAFE: R
ehBREEEY CEMRER - BR
B BRERR - BNEKR  5tAE
MHIE - HitRRHRBEREMEEZ
EREE FHARURTHMERRZE
R BV B « &t AE A A 5R K&
B ERzERMAE  FERITEER
ZEHH L MEERB NS -
MR R TAREHARNEE - HER
FEEEmEERS -

RIFEEBHAENG  aRNRFHE
REE - MU AKEERITIEEFE
BIEAER D 2 AFEEAE R FHERS °

EREEFEAEEREAGBNRAR
fi S HIFE (S R IR 2 & B B B IF BN H1 28
DZAFEEEEFEEREMRS  REE
HiFmEEREHRE  BREFLEHRESR
BB BELUER - EER R KRR F 8
ZTRZBITEREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's corporate finance department headed by the
finance manager is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of lease liabilities and
financial liabilities included in other long-term payables have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a
result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for lease liabilities
as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 were assessed to
be insignificant.

The fair value of the non-current portion of a loan to an associate
has been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The differences
between the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial
liabilities are not significant.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss has been determined by reference to the valuation carried
out by an external independent valuer by using binomial model.
The model involves estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate,
share price, expected volatility, discount rates and others. The
significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement
is the expected volatility. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the expected volatility. Any changes in the major
inputs used in the model will result in changes in the fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The variables
and assumptions used in calculating the fair value are based on
the directors’ best estimate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41. ERMIAZAVERDVERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) €D

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments AEEFHEER TN IEEIBET ZOT
with creditworthy financial institutions. Derivative financial HESRmTHE - PTEEemTA(ZTEAT
instruments, mainly interest rate swaps, are measured using R HIA L)) B BB 2 (HE
valuation techniques similar to swap models, using present value fli - FRABREFEEASE - BEER
calculations. The models incorporate various market observable SABIEMS A ERG AZE B
input including the credit quality of counterparties and interest HWFEHZEEGEZRMERHER o FIX
rate curves. The carrying amounts of interest rate swaps are the BEAEL 2 RmESAEQAFERR -

same as their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy AFEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRINEAEEEMTEZ AFER
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: EEL
Financial assets measured at fair value BLTFEAEZ DHEE
As at 31 December 2021 Fair value measurement using
R-B-_-%+-A=+-H AT FIRETAFEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERTS EATEBE EAFTTEE
ZRE BABE BABE

(B—%) (B=H) (B=8) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
FHT FHET FHET FET
Financial assets at fair value BRATER AEx
through profit or loss LERMEE - - 96,714 96,714
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

41. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

As at 31 December 2020
N-E-FTE+=-A=+—8

41. TRITAZAFERATEE
&)
AFEER(E)
BRNFEGTECeMEE ()

Fair value measurement using

ERATSEETAYEMNE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

AR BERAEE BEATITHE

2B AR TN €7
(EF—&) (F=#&) (F=H) et
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET

Financial assets at fair value BATHER AR

through profit or loss ZERMEE - = 106,333 106,333

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31
December 2021 and 2020:

TERBIAR—_ZE-_—FR T -_FF
+-A=+—BEEMREAZERT
ERGARBEERTEHREDN

Significant Sensitivity of
Valuation unobservable fair value to
31 December 2021 technique input Range the input
EXTAEE DPEH
—B--f+ZA=1+-H R BRI BARE #E BABBZHRE
Financial assets at fair value Binomial mode Expected volatility 43.58% 5% increase/decrease would
through profit or loss ZEAER of share price, result in increase/decrease in
BATESABR 2REAE determined by fair value by 5%
the historical daily TR/ THR%H e EHATE
stock prices R/ THBS%
BATSAREET
Z EERE KR
Discount rate 18.38% 5% increase/decrease would
B % result in decrease/increase in
fair value by 5%
TR/ B EHATE
T#/ L75%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-_—F+-A=-1+—BLEE

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41. TRTAZAFERATEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) &)

AFEBR(E)

BATFEAEZ HEEE)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

Significant Sensitivity of
Valuation unobservable fair value to
31 December 2020 technique input Range the input
BATABE NFEY
ZZZZF+ZA=1+—H fRE R BARE [ 8RR 2 BURE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

BAVEFARGZEREE

Binomial mode

ZIEAER

Expected volatility ~ 39.82%
of share price,
determined by
the historical daily

5% increase/decrease would
result in increase/decrease in
fair value by 5%

R/ TR EERAT

stock prices BLEH/ TE%
mBTEHREE

T2 TR B

18
Discount Rate 22.57% 5% increase/decrease would
BhIR %k result in decrease/increase in

fair value by 5%
R/ TR BHATF
ETE EF5%

BRERERAT | 2021 £58% 179



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

41. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Financial assets measured at fair value (continued)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during
the year are as follows:

41. TRITAZAFERATFEE

46 D)
DFEER(E)

EAT(EHEZ 2REE(E)
FREZRAFESEZSDNT -

Equity
investment
designated
at fair value  Financial assets
through other at fair value
comprehensive through
income profit or loss
EERAFE
PN BAVE
2HEBA HON -F- 4
ZBRAERE SREE
HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET
1 January 2020 —E-FEEF—-A—H 13,799
Purchases EE = 97,800
Restoration to original cost for the investment HEKABERRZRERE
subsequently becoming an associate ERREAE 10,637 =
Gains recognised in the statement of RIEBEKRERIL T AEBUA
profit or loss included in other income and gains Nz 2 Wik - 8,533
Classified to an investment in an associate NEANBES R ZRE (24,436) =
As at 31 December 2020 and 1January 2021 R-E-ZTF+-_A=1+—H
kZT=—%—H—H - 106,333
Loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss RERERBERI T AEAMBA
included in other income and gains Mz BB - (9,619)
As at 31 December 2021 R_E-_—&F+-A=+—H - 96,714
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 41. ERMIBEZAFERATFERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) |z
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEBHR(E)
Financial liabilities measured at fair value HINTFEFAECZCRERE
As at 31 December 2021 Fair value measurement using
R-B=-%+=ZHA=+—-H ERAUTREETAVENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERMIS EXTEE EATTEE
ZRE BABE BABE

(F—#) (=) (B=#) met
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£ &R T A - 129 - 129
As at 31 December 2020 Fair value measurement using
R-2-2Ft-A=+-8 AT RBETATFE &
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EEME  BAUEE BATIEE
(B BABE BABE

(B—%) (B=H) (F=H) 4B

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

FET FEL FET FEr

Derivative financial instruments ~ #74£ &8 T A = 9,859 = 9,859
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRN - BeMAGENE F—HANE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into TRAFEFEZATETAERE
or out of Level 3 for financial liabilities (2020: Nil). FZHNECAEAZEL(ZZE-F

FE) e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, loan
receivables, other receivables, trade payables and other payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, principally
interest rate swaps. The purpose is to manage the interest rate
arising from the Group’s sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments are
credit risk and liquidity risk. Management reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to financial
instruments are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily loans receivable).

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties and related parties. It is the Group's policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, trade receivables, loans receivable, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables, a loan to an associate
and other assets included in the consolidated statement of
financial position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The Group has no other
financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

The investment in convertible bonds exposes the Group to
concentration of credit risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group assesses the financial position and performance of
the issuer of the convertible bonds and in view of sufficient net
assets and significant bank balance and cash of the issuer, the
management considers the default risk on the investment in
convertible bonds is not significant.
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42.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

For the money lending business, the Group manages and analyses
the credit risk for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are offered. If there is
no independent rating, the Group assesses the credit quality of
the customer based on the customer’s financial position, past
experience and other factors. The Group holds collateral against
loans receivable and interest receivables in the form of mortgages
over property. The majority of the collateral is residential
properties, commercial properties and industrial properties and all
of the collateral is located in Hong Kong. Individual risk limits are
set based on the value of collateral provided by customers and
internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the
directors. The utilisation of credit limits is reqularly monitored.

All the carrying amounts of financial assets at amortised cost,
applying the general approach were classified as Stage 1 in terms
of ECLs as at 31 December 2021, and the impaired loan to an
associate was classified as Stage 2, as stated in note 39(b) to the
financial statements. All the carrying amounts of financial assets at
amortised cost, applying the general approach, were classified in
Stage 1 in terms of ECLs as at 31 December 2020.

42,

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

HEREREERBERBER(#)

REEBRRERBERE)
RREXKME  MEBRHEP MR
EEPRHBEERGERRGMEZ
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ERRERMERBERR - HF 5w
REHREEME BAVERIE
MERMEERBILNES ° E@5
RBRREEREEFRTEREERN
EEMREHEEARAR 2BERATEHI
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IREZEBABEMR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42, HMBEREEEERBE®)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk REBESRER
The Group's treasury department closely monitors the Group's REE 2 BEBEFIERE HEY) BERA
cash flow positions on a regular basis to ensure that the cash flows SEZREREMR - UBEREE
of the Group are positive. The Group aims to maintain flexibility LHeREBRIEH - AEEEBER
in funding by keeping committed credit lines available, obtaining EERGBEIAISHACEERERSE [
debentures from specific entities and borrowing loans from BFEERENESRARITEAE
banks. BB FESEEN -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end BEEHARMBERIEFE  A&EBS
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted BREERERPMEEA 2R BIER
payments, is as follows: N
2021
—EB-—-F
Lessthan 3 to less than 1to
3 months 12 months 5 years Total
3fEAZE
AR 12f8AR 15255 ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables FERTBR R 1,354 - - 1,354
Derivative financial instruments $74 4 & T & 516 - - 516
Financial liabilities included in 5t A E i 1+ F0 18 K.
other payables and accruals EtERzeRmERE 5,360 - - 5,360
Lease liabilities HE&E 481 - - 481
Interest-bearing STERITIEE
bank borrowings 8,950 26,560 1,663,708 1,699,218
16,661 26,560 1,663,708 1,706,929
2020
—TTF
Less than 3toless than 1to
3 months 12 months 5 years Total
MAAE
AR 1218 A A 1FEE5F st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables FETERFR 416 2,668 = 3,084
Derivative financial instruments $74& 8 TR 793 9,066 - 9,859
Financial liabilities included in & AEARFEAS 5B &
other payables and accruals EERzEeREE 10,426 - - 10,426
Lease liabilities HERE 299 1515 409 2223
Interest-bearing FEBRITER
bank borrowings 3,395 1,802,498 - 1,805,893
15329 1,815,747 409 1,831,485
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42, HMBEREEEERBE®)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management BERER
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to REBEAEEZ TEBEZARER
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and EEBERKEZENMBEFERER
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business e A EBEESRNESEARE
and maximise shareholders’ value. B1E o
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments $’§ BIEREERGEE  UEELE
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk SR REREE 2 RREEEL
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the JHEE o AN ABRENERE A&
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment EoieAERRERE ZREKE
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new A B AR [0 & AN ) 35 1T AR - ZIK%@
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital PR ERIINEEHEINE) B RNIREFTIR
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies E!ZE —E - —F+ZA=+—HEKZ=
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 T_F ¢+ A=+—HItEE - é
December 2021 and 31 December 2020. AEBZ BIE - BURHIEF &S
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total 7R &= E{$ ’ééﬁﬁtt*(ﬁﬂ%%%%ﬁ
borrowings divided by total assets. Total borrowings include RINEERBE)ERER - BERES
interest-bearing bank borrowings. The gearing ratios as at the end HitBR1TEE - N2 i&%ﬁ f#EE H
of the reporting periods were as follows: ZEEBBLERMT ¢
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
MtaF FET FHEIT
Total borrowings EEMA%E
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEBRITEE 27 1,516,793 1,625,806
Total assets EEMAE 3,715,223 4,067,167
Gearing ratio BEAGBHEE 40.8% 40.0%
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 43. E2HRPEEEIE
As at the date of approval of the financial statements, there was no RAFEmRRIERE - AEBERE

material subsequent event undertaken by the Group.

EEAHRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=+—RALFE

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44, RN TEZ B RBR
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RERABSERRA T 2B BN
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: WEZERNT -
2021 2020
- T EF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIKE 82,240 1,256
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 82,240 1,256
CURRENT ASSETS mENE E
Due from subsidiaries S NGIE ¢ 1,448,670 1,649,078
Other receivables and prepayments E b WA M TR 5OE 1,164 1,110
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 658,516 750,757
Total current assets MENEEBE 2,108,350 2,400,945
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Other payables and accruals HAb I R EET B A 1,683 1,489
Total current liabilities MEN B EEEE 1,683 1,489
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 2,106,667 2,399,456
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERTEBAER 2,188,907 2,400,712
Net assets BEFE 2,188,907 2,400,712
EQUITY M
Share capital [N 1,277,888 1,277,888
Reserves (note) A, 911,019 1,122,824
Total equity EmfaE 2,188,907 2,400,712
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—RLFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44, ARFZHHMRREHER (5
COMPANY (continued)
Note: HaF -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ATARABREERE -
Share  Share option Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
B3R ME BRERE B REGF met
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-EF—A—H 1,027,637 2,158 23,350 159,597 1,212,742
Loss and total comprehensive FREBER
loss for the year PHEGESEE - - = (89,918) (89,918)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZ-ZTF
1 January 2021 +=-A=+—H8K
—E-—%—H—H 1,027,637 2,158 23,350 69,679 1,122,824
Loss and total comprehensive loss & A E518 I
for the year SHEELE - - - (211,805) (211,805)
At 31 December 2021 A
+-A=+—H 1,027,637 2,158 23,350 (142,126) 911,019
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted EREEEREE BB S R{TE 2 AR
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy ZAFE E—SHBERTEHREKRMNE24
for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The BRERMNNZRZ @t ERE - S EE
amount will either be transferred to share capital when the related options T AR (5 AR R RS AR RE M AT A ) S
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the related R BB T ((HIERE R RRRE fE Sm s 8 Uk )
options expire or be forfeited.
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 45. LB EH
During current year, the Company has re-presented the defined RAREE  ARFEBRATENETE
benefit obligations in a separate line item. Accordingly, certain S22V AEBEE - At - BT
comparative amounts have been restated to conform with the NEREEEHEY  UFEAAFEENER
current year's presentation. FHI o
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 46. HUEBMBE|®EK

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 28 March 2022.

PHEREREN - E-_—_F=ZA=_+N
BEEES I ELRETZ -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T FEEEE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling NTREAEEBREDEMBFE EBEAR
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the BE BENMIEEREREE  BEERT
published audited financial statements and re-presented/reclassified as BT B 2 EEZUBRE  WIELE
appropriate, is set out below. B2ERBHOEBER -

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-A=t—-HLHEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —E-TF —Z-hF T-N\F EB—+F
HKS’000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FHET FET FET FHET
RESULTS B
REVENUE Wz 93,934 37,770 244,685 300,710 260,970
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX ﬁ%%}%ﬁﬁ(}fﬁﬂ%ﬁ)/}ﬁ?ﬁ] (169,871) (442,150) (27,059) 339,977 (23,714)
Income tax credit/(expense) T3 E R, (FAx) 5,508 109,276 (3,556) (1,121 28,394
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  FER (18 )/ij?ﬁlj (164,363) (332,874) (30,615) 338,856 4,680
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE -SERFERES
INTERESTS

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--% CZZZTHF ZZ-hE ZE-)\F ZT—+tF
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET F&ET F&ET
Total assets AR 3,715,223 4,067,167 4,210,121 4,339,175 4,217,128
Total liabilities BEE (1,731,488) (1,855,326) (1,787,282) (1,843,148) (1,997,129)

1,983,735 2,211,841 2,422,839 2,496,027 2,219,999
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